
Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with 
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you’ll enjoy 
the following benefits:  

•  Efficient, integrated PDF viewing 

•  Easy printing 

•  Quick searches 

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?  

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8, 
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.

http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html




COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Legal Interim Attorney Dennis Davenport


Approval of staff's recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2013-10 amending the Code of Ordinances for Fayette County by revising 


provisions pertaining to authority to waive procedures and fee structures in emergencies, providing an effective date, repealing conflicting 


ordinances, providing severability, promoting the public health, safety and welfare, and for other purposes.


Under circumstances necessitated by emergency conditions involving public safety or the preservation of property or public services, the 


county governing authority may meet by means of teleconference so long as notice is provided and means are afforded for the public to 


have simultaneous access to the teleconference meeting. 


 


Ordinance 2013-10 delineates how emergency procurements are authorized.  It further allows the county governing authority to suspend 


purchasing ordinances, regulations, policies or procedures to provide for the health and safety of persons and property, including 


emergency assistance to victims of the emergency.  The county governing authority may authorize emergency measures for the duration 


of the emergency and the subsequent recovery period.  The County may waive the requirement for competitive bidding, contract for 


public works without letting such contract to the lowest responsible bidder without advertising and posting notification of such contract, 


authorize specific individuals to approve purchases or contracts which exceed the authorization limit of the Purchasing Director, 


temporarily increase any department's P-Card spending limit as warranted by the nature of the emergency, and authorize any other 


procurement actions deemed necessary by the county governing authority to provide for the health and safety of persons and property.


Approval of staff's recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2013-10 amending the Code of Ordinances for Fayette County by revising 


provisions pertaining to authority to waive procedures and fee structures in emergencies, providing an effective date, repealing conflicting 


ordinances, providing severability, promoting the public health, safety and welfare, and for other purposes.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Yes Yes


Any contracts or other agreements executed using emergency procurement procedures shall be entered in the minutes of the county as 


soon as practical, and the nature of the emergency shall be described therein.


ConsentTuesday, July 9, 2013







 


 
 1 


STATE OF GEORGIA 


FAYETTE COUNTY 


ORDINANCE 


NO. 2013-10 


AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CODE OF ORDINANCES FOR FAYETTE 


COUNTY, GEORGIA; TO REVISE PROVISIONS PERTAINING TO AUTHORITY TO 


WAIVE PROCEDURES AND FEE STRUCTURES IN EMERGENCIES; TO PROVIDE 


AN EFFECTIVE DATE; TO REPEAL CONFLICTING ORDINANCES; TO PROVIDE 


FOR SEVERABILITY; TO PROMOTE THE PUBLIC HEALTH, SAFETY AND 


WELFARE, AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF 


COMMISSIONERS FOR FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA AND IT IS HEREBY 


ENACTED PURSUANT TO THE AUTHORITY OF THE SAME THAT THE CODE OF 


ORDINANCES OF FAYETTE COUNTY AS IT PERTAINS TO STATE OF 


EMERGENCY REGULATIONS (ARTICLE VI OF CHAPTER 12), BE AMENDED AS 


FOLLOWS: 


 


Section 1. By adding a new sentence to the end of Subsection (a) of Section 12-241, 


pertaining to “Authority to waive procedures and fee structures”, of Division 1 of 


Article VI of Chapter 12, to be read as follows: 


Under circumstances necessitated by emergency conditions involving public safety or the 


preservation of property or public services, the county governing authority may meet by 







 


 
 2 


means of teleconference so long as notice is provided and means are afforded for the 


public to have simultaneous access to the teleconference meeting, pursuant to O.C.G.A. § 


15-14-1. 


 


Section 2. By deleting Subsection (b) of Section 12-241 of Division 1 of Article VI of 


Chapter 12, in its entirety, and by replacing it with a new Subsection (b) in 


Section 12-241 of Division 1 of Article VI of Chapter 12, to be numbered and 


read as follows: 


 


(b) Emergency procurement.  Upon declaration of a state of emergency by the 


Governor, or determination by the county governing authority, its designee, or 


emergency interim successor (hereinafter referred to as the “county governing 


authority”) of the existence of an emergency or disaster, the county governing 


authority may suspend purchasing ordinances, regulations, policies or procedures 


to provide for the health and safety of persons and property, including emergency 


assistance to victims of the emergency.  The county governing authority may 


authorize emergency measures for the duration of the emergency and the 


subsequent recovery period.  The county governing authority may: 


(1) Waive the requirement for competitive bidding for emergency purchases 


of supplies, equipment, materials, or services. 


(2) Contract for public works without letting such contract out to the lowest 


responsible bidder and without advertising and posting notification of such 







 


 
 3 


contract as required by established statutes, rules, regulations, or policies. 


(3) Authorize specific individuals to approve purchases or contracts which 


exceed the authorization limit of the Purchasing Director, or approve other 


procurement actions as warranted by emergency conditions. 


(4) Temporarily increase any department’s P-Card spending limit as 


warranted by the nature of the emergency, including the limit per 


purchase, limit per month, and number of transactions per day to levels 


deemed appropriate by the county governing authority. 


(5) Authorize any other procurement actions deemed necessary by the county 


governing authority to provide for the health and safety of persons and 


property. 


 Any contracts or other agreements executed using emergency procurement 


procedures shall be entered in the minutes of the county as soon as practical, and 


the nature of the emergency shall be described therein. 


 


Section 3. By deleting Subsection (e) of Section 12-241 of Division 1 of Article VI of 


Chapter 12, in its entirety, and by replacing it with a new Subsection (e) in 


Section 12-241 of Division 1 of Article VI of Chapter 12, to be numbered and 


read as follows: 


(e) Temporary dwellings.  Upon the declaration of a state of emergency by the 


governor, or upon the determination by the county governing authority, or its 


designee, of the existence of an emergency or disaster, the county governing 







 


 
 4 


authority, their designee or the emergency interim successor may issue permits for 


temporary mobile home, trailer, recreational vehicles or other temporary dwelling 


structures or parks in any zoning district while the primary dwelling is being 


repaired provided that such temporary dwellings or parks are designed by an 


engineer and the plans are approved by the Fayette County Health Department 


and Fayette County Building and Inspections Department.  The temporary permit 


shall not exceed six (6) months in duration. In the case of continuing hardship and 


in the discretion of the governing authority or its designee, the permit may be 


extended for a period for an additional six (6) months.  Upon the expiration of the 


temporary permit or an extension, the temporary dwelling shall be removed. 


 


Section 4. This ordinance shall become effective immediately upon its adoption by the 


Board of Commissioners for Fayette County, Georgia. 


 


Section 5. All other ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are 


hereby repealed. 


 


Section 6. In any event any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance 


shall be declared or adjudged invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall 


in no manner affect other sections, subsections, sentences, clauses or phrases of 


this Ordinance, which shall remain in full force and effect as if the section, 


subsection, sentence, clause or phrase so declared or adjudged invalid or 







 


 
 5 


unconstitutional were not a part thereof.  The Board of Commissioners hereby 


declares that it would have passed the remaining parts of this Ordinance if it had 


known that such part or parts hereof would be declared or adjudged invalid or 


unconstitutional.


SO ENACTED this ____ day of _________________, 2013. 


 


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF 


FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA 


 


 


By:_______________________ 


     Steve Brown, Chairman 


(SEAL)  


 


 


ATTEST:      


 


 


___________________________ 


Floyd Jones, County Clerk 


 


 


Approved as to form: 


 


___________________________ 


Interim County Attorney 





		Legal- Ordinance 2013-10 Agenda Request File

		Legal- Ordinance 2013-10 Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Public Works / SPLOST Phil Mallon


Consideration of staff's requests for proposed intersection improvements at State Route 85 and Harp Road,  including authorization to 


resume work on the project, to agree to Fayette County making improvements on Harp Road in exchange for GDOT to install the traffic 


signal,  to authorize Mallet Consulting to complete the design, and to authorize the County to acquire right-of-ways and easements.


Harp Road and SR 85 is among the busiest and most dangerous intersections in unincorporated Fayette County.  For nearly a decade 


Fayette County has been working with the Georgia Department of Transportation (GDOT) to get a traffic signal permit for the location.  


Recently GDOT re-assessed the intersection's traffic volume and crash data and determined a signal is warranted. 


 


GDOT is requesting that Fayette County design and build the needed improvements to Harp Road.  Upon completion, GDOT will design 


and install the traffic signal.  A similar "joint effort" was recently completed successfully at the intersection of Corinth Road and SR 54.  As 


typical, Fayette County will assume all operating costs (i.e., power) for the signal.  


 


This project is eligible for SPLOST funding and preliminary surveying and design work was completed several years ago by Mallett 


Consulting.  The project was shelved after GDOT determined a signal was not warranted.  Staff believes it is in the County's best interest 


to complete the design work with Mallett since they have an existing contract with the County as well as baseline field data on the project. 


Expenditures to-date for this project total $19,700; estimate to complete design is $16,400 (Preconstruction Engineering total:  $36,100). 


 


A copy of the GDOT stop-and-go traffic signal permit is provided as back-up to this request.  


Approval of staff's requests for proposed intersection improvements at State Route 85 and Harp Road (SPLOST Project No. FC-6), 


including authorization to resume work on the project, agreement for Fayette County to make improvements on Harp Road in exchange 


for GDOT to install the traffic signal, authorization for Mallet Consulting, Inc. complete design under terms and conditions of existing 


Master Service Agreement, and authorization for the County to acquire needed right-of-ways and easements for project construction.


Funding is required to complete design, obtain right-of-way, and make roadway improvements.  Sufficient funds are available in the 


SPLOST 320 account.  The cost estimate to complete design is $16,400.


No


Yes Yes


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


On September 7, 2005, the Board of Commissioners authorized Mallett Consulting to proceed on a number of SPLOST projects that 


included the intersection of Highway 85 and Harp Road.  Mallett Consulting began working on the project and has thus far spent 


$19,700.00.  The work was delayed by the GDOT who informed the County that a traffic signal was not warranted for the intersection.  


GDOT has now agreed to a traffic signal, and the remaining cost to complete the design work is $19,700.00.


New BusinessTuesday, July 9, 2013







GEORGIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATIONKeith Golden, P.E., Commissioner 


One Georgia Center, 600 West Peachtree Street, NW 
Atlanta, Georgia 30308 
Telephone: (404) 631-1000 


May 23, 2013 


Phil Mallon, Director 
Fayette County Public Works 
115 McDonough Road 
Fayetteville, GA 30215 


Re: State Route 85 at Harp Rd 


Dear Mr. Mallon: 


Enclosed for your record is an approved pennit to install a stop and go traffic signal pennit at the intersection on 
State Route 85 and Harp Road in Fayette County. The installation of the signal is contingent upon Fayette 
County completing improvements to Harp Road as shown on the attached design. These improvements include 
right tum lanes, left tum lanes and the concrete pedestrian pads that will be used with the pedestrian 
accommodations included with the signal installation. 


Please keep a copy of this approved pennit for your files. If you have any questions concerning this pennit, 
please contact this office at 706-646-7589 or 115 Transportation Blvd., Thomaston, GA 30286. 


Sincerely, 


Scott Parker 
District Traffic Operations Manager 


SP: 
enclosure 







DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 


STATE OF GEORGIA 


INTERDEPARTMENT CORRESPONDENCE 


FILE: Fayette County, Fayetteville OFFICE: ATLANTA-TMC 
SR 85 @ Harp Rd 


DATE: May la, 2013 


~() In- ~~ 
FROM: Kathy Zahul, P.E., State Traffic Engineer 


TO: Thomas Howell, P.E., District Engineer, Thomaston 
Attn: Scott Parker 


SUBJECT: Permit for Stop and Go Traffic Signal 


Attached for further handling is an approved permit to install a stop 
and go traffic signal at the intersection of State Route 85 at Harp 
Road in the city of Fayetteville, Fayette County. 


Currently, SR 85 is a 55 mph, three lane arterial with a single 
northbound and southbound through lanes separated by a center flush 
median section marked with northbound and southbound left turn lanes. 


Harp Rd currently consists of single through lanes for the eastbound 
and westbound approaches with a posted speed limit of 40 mph. The 
eastbound and westbound approaches have an approximate downhill grade 
of 2% at this intersection. 


The approval of this permit is contingent upon Fayette County 
completing improvements to Harp Road at this location as shown on the 
approved design. 


Please keep a copy of this approved permit for your files and send a 
copy to the city of Fayetteville. Please feel free to contact this 
office if you should have any questions concerning this matter. 


KZ:PD:ktd 
Attachments 







-------------- --------------


-----------


I 


'.. ,'1':' 1 .....:. -} ", 'j..' i-' --.\ 
DQT-40;a '~; \ >., ..': .,:;'; ~.~;: ~~._J ~ 


REV. 0 DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION ~ :, "'-"·=1 l 
STATE OF GEORGIAl ', __.,_",HAR 29 2013, _'_",~, II ; 


TRAFFIC SIGNAL AUTHORIZATIOj '- , ,,', -
.. ~ .. .. , .. 1L..".. of- , • ~ 


The Georgia Department of Transportation hereby approves, subjeqt to 1:b,-e{~?p:~i~~ons'set fd.rt 
herein, the use of a Traffic Signal device as described below ;and-'as'~'shown:;dn-the' iiEfa'che 
drawing. 


LOCATION OF SIGNAL 


Fayette Fayetteville 6 16 
county: City: Mile Point: 


Local Highway or Street Names: at Harp Road 


Sta'te Route and U.S. Route Numbers: SR85 at 


GOaT Intersection Number: 0010403 


TYPE SIGNAL 
. ,. ~ 


1:i8l'. Stop and Go [] Flashing Beacon [] School Beacon [] Advance Warning Flashers 
i.: :, 


o Other ~ Pedestrian Push Buttons ~ Pedestrian Heads 


0' 'RR Pre -emption [] Other Pre-emption [] Interconnected 
Master/Local 


Controller shall meet Georgia D.O.T Specifications. Controller phasing and signal heads shal 
conform to the details on the attached drawing. 


The signal device as described in this document is to be maintained and operated by: 


~ The Georgia Department of Transportation 
[] 


Special Requirements: 


~top and Go signals shall flash during all times when not in Stop and Go operation and during emergenc 
repairs. Signal heads, except for School Beacons, are to be hooded or taken down when for any reason th 
signal is not operating as a Stop and Go Signal or Flasher during a period of more than six consecutiv 
days.· or when requested by the District Traffic Engineer. The traffic control signal equipment, it 
installation and operation covered by this authorization shall not be materially altered without th 
written approval of the Georgia Department of Transportation. 


NOTE: This authorization is valid only so long as equipment used is standard equipment as specified an 
is maintained and operated in accordance with the terms of this authorization and the requirements 0 


the current Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices. 


RECOMMENDED: 


RECOMMENDED:../)'\./l~~. y~ APPROVED. 
-DiVQSlon Director of operations ~~~~~~~~~~-~------







Harp Road (40 mph) 


" 


'''''' 
" '\ \ 


\\ 
\ 


\ 
\ 


\ 
\ 


"\, 
\ , 


\\ 
\ 
\ 
\ 
\ 
\ 


\ 


\
, 


\, 


. ;j\;"~~~ - Pin-


fiS~ 


private driVewaj l 


'. ,.>::::::::~:':.:.,' 
.~..... 


....." 
'.,"'...... 


"':~...... .,...... 


existing estimated r-o-w 60' ',<,."., 
,', b 
,,~, \. 


"' "', '... ''', \
\ '~\


0,., '<t, 
" \, 


" .\ . \' 
'\"~\ . " \,\ ,


.', \ 
\\ ' .', \ 
\\'


", \
\\ ,
", \ 
\\ ' 


332 cabinet and components 'xl. \ 
with 2070 controller \ .... 
and type 3 '\ \ 


~\ " 


pullbox reauired r-o-w ~'. ... 
" , 


~ 
\:\\ 


existing overhead utilities ' \'.~, 
'" ... existing utility pole 'y \. 


existing buned utilities • '. \-::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::~:::::::=:::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::~::1:::0:0:0::::::;0:-. .:,~\ 


i 


~~:~ pUll box (tyPica\~4 


'" , '. 


--=======-:==\north ~ 


PHASING DIAGRAM 


\ 
estimated right-of-way 


\
I 


6' X6' set back loop
50' from centerline"\ \ 405' from stop bal


.~~~7'C'7'7':'''C':'C'C':'''7':'7':':'7':'C'7':'7'~':'7'C':'7'~':'7':'C':":':'=:0:~:::~:,:
\ 


_:,:_:,::_:,:,:_:_:.~,.-
_m mEI~cl;;;.;;",__m_m'm_m.;;;;'-'';'-(i;;k;,) lOa",;;;;-m -_n - n 


for loop read-In cable 


fJ2 


~ ----------~~-----fl5 6' X40' quadrapole loop (typical) '(yfiS 


Ll 2 inch conduit typeTpuH boxWPlca 


--- ----------- ----- ------- !~~~O~~d~i~:r~I~----------------~~~'-s~af~n~-~--_---------------------------Lj-Gl--- .. ," -ELJedestrian pole and indications I State Route 85 (55 mph) 
, , -------------". S lobe inslalled (typlcan-- ---------------------------------- !~~~~~~:~ar \ Ip~--------------------------------------------------- . 


6' X6' set backloop. \ / ' type IV strain pole to be insalled (typical)
405' from slop bar \ // I" . , 


\ \ I 6' X10' quadrapole loop 
utility pole with overhead utilities: \. I(typlcaQ 


I \ , 
I', f 
! '. I, , 


Harp Road i.., i 
(40 mph) I \ b IPIXILATED LED PIXILATED LEO Double SidedI \ Uv ; required r.o-w ~~nuw.... .I \ ~ 


, \ overhead signsf 
ISIGNAL INDICATIONS PED INOl CA TI ONS " II , I APPROVED 


,i,',> ~~.( 't-')(' 
I ,I ~ 11 I 


~lnl1·t ..
!. (,I,,' 
" \ II 
" '\1


"',",I, II 
J~ __I I 


I I , 


PEDESTRIAN SIGNS i f 
, 


• 
I 


[[]~ 
tul.. oo~rr6TART 
\.I FMISH dlbSSlNG 
~ lfSTAInE) 


I(:)Ol _,a,..,,,,, 
~TOmstiCROSSINlJ,,,.. 
[[I1~:=J 
( < TO eMS!: - J'I' 
, PUSH BUTTON .:. 


, f 
I , ® IL SR 85 ~ , I 


I , f.··I;AR 29 20;'3ir, I 


! I i / --.•..... - ..~~ ,I I \; / ";(,iJGlA® II HARP RO ~! I. .~, / , "'0.&1.:I ,/ ',~xisting utility pole .,....~~~'e........ '"""'........~::::t%a:....
I ; , 


/ ! ;
,/ ./ ,. 


• I.I ,. 
' 


2/5 2,4,6,8 P2, P4, P6, P8 9·Xl~" 9"'XlS'"' ,/existing estimated r-o-w 60'RI0-3.U RIG-3eCR) I 
I 


REVI 51 ONS ,../ Georgia Department of Transportation •District Three, Thomaston, Georgia

Georgia Department of Transportation
 


Location: State Route 85 at Harp RoadDistrict Three Traffic Operations 
M,P. 6.16 Fayette CountrmAdrews Drive 


Thomaston, Geor~ia 30286 _PlQRQsed traffic signal installation (not to scale) Febn!¥}' 2013 







Do Not Write In This Space 


Distribution: 
White - Applicant A pp Ii c at ion No. _ 


Yellow - State Traffic Engineer 
Pink  District Traffic Engineer Perm i t No. _ 


DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTTION 
STATE OF GEORGIA 


REQUEST FOR TRAFFIC SIGNAL 


To the Gl:lorgia Department of Transportation: 


The Board of Commissoners in Fayette County hereby request approval for the use of a 
traffic signal at the location described below: 


LOCATION 


Local Street names: Highway 85 at Harp Road 


State Route Numbers: 85 at Harp Road 


TYPE SIGNAL 


IZI Stop and Go D Flashing Beacon OSchool Beacon D Other 


CONDITIONS OF APPLICATION AND STANDARDS OF OPERATION 


]n the event that the Georgia Department of Transportation authorizes the use of a traffic 
signal at the above location, the undersigned agrees to participate in the costs to purchase 
and install the signal. This level of participation will be determined after a study of the 
location has been completed. The signal must be installed to the Department's standards and 
conform with the authorization issued by the Department and the provisions set forth therein. 


COST OF OPERATION 


The full and entire costs of the electric energy and telephone service used to operate the 
signal shall be at the expense of the applicant without any cost to the Georgia Department of 
Transportation. The applicant understands that the Department may ask for participation in 
the cost for the purchase, installation and maintenance of the signal if approved. 


INSPECTION AND APPROVAL 


The installation, maintenance and operation of said signal shall be subject at all times to 
inspection and approval by a duly authorized engineer of the Georgia Department of 
Transportation. 


RIGHT TO REVOKE 


The Georgia Department of Transportation reserves the right to revoke the approval should it 
for any reason desire to do so, by giving the applicant thirty (30) days written notice, and in 
that event, the applicant agrees to remove said signal from said right-of-way at its own 
expense or allow it to be removed by the Department. 


This application is hereby submitted and all of the terms and conditions are hereby agreed to. 
The undersigned are duly authorized to execute this instrument. 


This the day of 20__ 


Attest: By: _ 


Ti tIe: _ 
Clerk 







Ü


State Highway 85 at Harp Road


CITY LIMITS
BROOKS
FAYETTEVILLE
PEACHTREE CITY
TYRONE
WOOLSEY
State Highways


SR
 Hw


y 8
5


Harp Road Ol
d S


en
oia


 R
oa


d


Harp Road


McBride Road


0 3 61.5
Miles

































		Public Works- Harp and SR 85 Agenda Request File

		Public Works- Harp and SR 85 Backup

		Public Works- Harp and SR 85 Backup

		Public Works- Harp and SR 85 Backup

		Public Works- Harp and SR 85 Backup-2



		Hwy 85 @ Harp Road












COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Public Works / SPLOST Phil Mallon


Approval of staff's recommendation to adopt the Georgia Department of Transportation's Contract for Acquisition of Right-of-Way for the 


McIntosh Road Bridge Replacement Project (SPLOST No. B-6), and authorization for the Chairman to sign said contract and related 


documents.


This project (GDOT PI 331650) is programmed to receive federal and state aid for construction.  As such, all design, environmental, right-


of-way and other work on the project is done in accordance with applicable federal standards.  The attached contract documents the 


terms and conditions that Fayette County shall follow while acquiring right-of-way and easements for the project.  It is a standard 


agreement from GDOT.  Staff has reviewed it and is agreement with the terms and conditions.   


 


Fayette County will be responsible for all right-of-way and easement, although we will work with Spalding County to acquire land in their 


jurisdiction.  All costs associated with the land acquisition will be paid by Fayette and Spalding Counties, i.e., there is no federal aid for 


the ROW phase. Please refer to Backup Item B, located on page 18, for a Cost Sharing Estimate for McIntosh Bridge Replacement.  


 


The Contract package includes a Georgia Security and Immigration Compliance Act Affidavit to be completed by Fayette County's 


Purchasing Department.


Approval of staff's recommendation to adopt the Georgia Department of Transportation's Contract for Acquisition of Right-of-Way for the 


McIntosh Road Bridge Replacement Project (SPLOST No. B-6), and authorization for the Chairman to sign said contract and related 


documents.


No funding is required for execution of the contract.  The project's budget is a combination of Fayette County SPLOST (B-6), Spalding 


County, State, and Federal funds.  Funding has already been aside for this project as described.


No


No Yes


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


This is an example in intergovernmental cooperation between Fayette County, Spalding County, and the state and federal governments 


for the safety of all citizens who depend on the McIntosh Road Bridge. This project involves 80% funding from GDOT and 20% funding 


from Fayette and Spalding Counties.  The counties have divided the 20% cost in half, meaning each county pays 10%. Since Fayette 


County is also responsible for design, utilities, and Right-of-Way, the county's estimated total cost for this project is approximately 16%.  


ConsentTuesday, July 9, 2013







GEORGIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION Keith Golden, P.E., Commissioner 


One Georgia Center, 600 West Peachtree Street, NW 
Atlanta, Georgia 30308 
Telephone: (404) 631-1000 


The Honorable Steve Brown, Chairman 
Fayette County Commissioners 
140 Stonewall Avenue West 
Fayetteville, GA 30214-2198 


Dear Chairman Brown: 


RE: Project No. BRSLB-1059-00(002); Fayette/Spalding 
P. I. 331650
 
CR 360IMclntosh Rd @ Flint River @ Fayette/Spalding Co Line
 


Transmitted for your further handling for execution are four sets of the Contract for Acquisition of Right of 
Way on the above subject project. Please omit the date at the top of page one, as this date will be 
inserted by the Department at the time of execution. Please return four original executed sets to this 
office for execution by the Deputy Commissioner and the State Preconstruction Engineer. Once the 
contracts have been signed, our office will return a fully executed set to you for your use. 


Any questions regarding this matter should be directed to the District Local Government RlW Coordinator, 
Jeff D. Franklin, at (706) 646-7551. Any written correspondence should be sent to 115 Transportation 
Blvd., Thomaston, Georgia 30286-7000. 


Yours very truly, 


Thomas B, Howell, P.E. 
District Engineer 


7!J~fl,7<~ 


By: William J. Rountree, P E. 
District Preconstruction Engineer 


Enclosures 


May 23,2013 



fjones

Typewritten Text

Backup Item A







 


Page 1 of 14 


            Revised 08-01-00 


            Revised 11-24-04 


            Revised 07-31-08 


            Revised 09-23-09 


Revised 11-12-10 


Revised 11-18-11 


Revised 03-15-13 
CONTRACT FOR ACQUISITION OF RIGHT OF WAY 


FEDERAL OR  STATE-AID PROJECT 


Non-Reimbursable 
 


                                                                                                    PROJECT: BRSLB-1059-00(002) 


                                                                                                    COUNTY: Fayette/Spalding 


                                                                                                    STATE ROUTE: NA 


                                                                                                    COUNTY ROAD: 360 


                                                                                                    P. I. NO.: 331650 


 


STATE OF GEORGIA 
 


COUNTY OF FAYETTE 
 


 


     This agreement made and entered into this _____ day of __________________, ______  by and between the 


DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION (hereinafter called the DEPARTMENT) and the COUNTY OF 


FAYETTE  (hereinafter called the COUNTY). 


 


WITNESSTH THAT: 
 


     WHEREAS, the DEPARTMENT and the COUNTY propose to let to construction the above indicated 


project located on CR 360/MCINTOSH RD @FLINT RIVER @FAYETTE/SPALDING CO LINE the 


rights of way which are to be acquired in the name of the COUNTY by the COUNTY without cost to the 


DEPARTMENT except as hereinafter specified; and, 


 


     WHEREAS, the DEPARTMENT is authorized to enter into this contract with the COUNTY by virtue of 


Section 32-2-2 (a) of the Official Code of Georgia Annotated; and, 


 


     WHEREAS, the COUNTY is authorized to enter into this contract by virtue of Sections 32-3-3 (3), 32-4-41 


(5), 32-4-42 (a) and 32-4-61 of the Official Code of Georgia Annotated and that certain resolution of the Board 


of Commissioners adopted the ____ day of _______________, ______   ; and 


 


     WHEREAS, said rights of way are to be acquired by the COUNTY in accordance with certain specified 


requirements of the Federal-aid Highway Act of 1970,  as amended, and regulations of the DEPARTMENT in 


order for the construction cost of said project to be eligible for Federal participation; and, 


 


     NOW, THERFORE, in consideration of Ten ($10.00) Dollars in hand paid to the COUNTY, the receipt of 


which is hereby acknowledged, and the mutual promises and covenants hereinafter set out, the 


DEPARTMENT and the COUNTY agree as follows: 







 


Page 2 of 14 


ITEM I 
 


The DEPARTMENT will prepare the legal descriptions and colored plats and furnish them to the COUNTY 


for use in acquiring the Rights of Way. The COUNTY shall ensure at the time of closing that the legal 


descriptions and plats in hand reflect the latest revised or current required right of way and/or easements. 


 


ITEM II 
 


The COUNTY will provide without cost to the DEPARTMENT, all legal counsel and services associated with 


the Acquisition of Rights of Way, including, but not limited to, the preparation and filing of all condemnation 


petitions in the name of the COUNTY. 


 


ITEM III 
 


The COUNTY will without cost to the DEPARTMENT, demolish and remove in their entirety all buildings, 


walls, fences, gates, underground storage tanks, signs or any other improvement or structures of any nature or 


description, lying wholly or partially situated within the right of way and/or easement area. The demolition and 


removal shall be in accordance with procedures approved by the DEPARTMENT. 


 


Any and all contaminated properties will require DEPARTMENT approval before being acquired by the 


COUNTY. 


 


The COUNTY also agrees and binds itself in accordance with Title 40 of the Georgia Code, that it will not pass 


any laws, rules, regulations or ordinances which penalize, hinder or otherwise obstruct the free movement of 


vehicular traffic on said roadway, including angle parking, nor erect any traffic signals, towers, lights on said 


right of way without written consent of the DEPARTMENT. 


 


ITEM IV 
 


During the life of this contract and prior to completion of the construction work and final acceptance of the 


project by the DEPARTMENT, the COUNTY agrees not to use convict labor in any way on or in connection 


with this project. 


 


ITEM V 
 


To the extent allowed by law, The COUNTY will without cost to the DEPARTMENT, defend and hold 


harmless the DEPARTMENT for any and all suits, if any should arise, involving property titles associated with 


the acquisition of Rights of Way, any liability or consequential damages resulting from personal injury, 


property damages, or inverse condemnation, except that which is the result of the sole negligence of the 


DEPARTMENT. 


 


ITEM VI 
. 


Once the environmental clearance is obtained and the right of way plans are approved, the COUNTY can begin 


acquisition activities; however, if the approved environmental document is not current within six (6) months 


from the plan approval date, an environmental re-evaluation will be required and right of way negotiations and 


acquisition cannot be initiated until the approval of the re-evaluation.   


 


 


 


 







 


Page 3 of 14 


ITEM VII 
 


The COUNTY will, in its right of way acquisition procedure observe and comply with the Uniform Relocation 


Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, as amended,  Public Law 91-646 and Georgia 


Laws 1972, p 931, and in accordance with the requirements as outlined in the Relocation Assistance Manual 


prepared by the DEPARTMENT. The COUNTY will be responsible for making payments to owners as 


required under this procedure for incidental expenses on the transfer of real property for rights of way purposes 


and such other moving and relocation cost as required under the law and determined to be proper by the 


DEPARTMENT.   The COUNTY will designate a party to be responsible for accepting, reviewing, and 


preparing responses to appeals of relocation assistance benefits.   The COUNTY will in their acquisition of the 


right of way, comply with the procedures set forth in Attachment No. 1 - Memorandum of Instructions. During 


the performance of this Contract, the COUNTY will also comply with the Regulations of the U.S. Department 


of Transportation relative to nondiscrimination in Federally-assisted programs of said Department in accordance 


with the stipulations as indicated under Appendix "A” attached. 


 


ITEM VIII 
 


Where determined to be desirable by Department Inspectors, the COUNTY will provide without cost to the 


DEPARTMENT, rodent control measures as required by the U.S. Department of Transportation prior to the 


demolition or removal of improvements located within the right of way of the project. The measures employed 


shall be in accordance with procedures approved by State and local laws and regulations governing rodent 


control. 


 


ITEM IX 
 


The COUNTY will make ample provisions each year for the proper maintenance of said roadway after 


completion of the proposed improvements. 


 


ITEM X 
 


This contract is the total agreement between the DEPARTMENT and the COUNTY and no modification of 


this contract shall be binding unless attached hereto and signed by both the DEPARTMENT and the 


COUNTY. No representation, promise or inducement not included in this contract shall be binding upon either 


the DEPARTMENT or the COUNTY. 


 


 


ITEM XI 
 


 TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE IN THIS CONTRACT.   
 


UNLESS OTHERWISE AMENDED BY THE MUTUAL AGREEMENT OF THE PARTIES HERETO, 


THIS CONTRACT WILL EXPIRE NO LATER THAN THE CONCLUSION OF FY___________. 


 


 


                                                             


 


 


 


 


 


 







 


Page 4 of 14 


 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this instrument has been and is executed on behalf of the DEPARTMENT OF 


TRANSPORTATION by the Commissioner of the DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION and on 


behalf of FAYETTE COUNTY being duly authorized to do so by the Fayette County Board of 


Commissioners. 


 


 


 


Executed on behalf of the Department Of 


Transportation this the ____ day of ______________, 


_____. 


 


 


 


APPROVED: 


 


BY: _____________________________ 


COMMISSIONER 


 


 


ATTEST: 


 


_________________________________ 


TREASURER 


 


 


 


Witness for the Department of Transportation: 


 


________________________________ 


 Executed on behalf of the County of Fayette  


this the ___ day of ____________________, ______. 


 


 


 


BY: ____________________________________ 


        CHAIRMAN of Board of Commissioners 


 


 


 


This Contract was approved by the Board of  


Commissioners at a meeting held this the 


 ____ day of _____________________, ______. 


 


 


___________________________________ 


CLERK OF THE COUNTY 


 


 


Witness for the County: 


 


________________________________________ 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


  


 


 


 


 


 


 







 


Page 5 of 14 


 


RESOLUTION OF COUNTY 


 


 


STATE OF GEORGIA 
 


COUNTY OF FAYETTE 


 


 BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County and it is hereby resolved, that 


the foregoing attached Agreement, relative to Project BRSLB-1059-00(002), Fayette/Spalding County be 


entered into by the Board of Commissioners, and that __________________________ as Chairman, and 


_______________________ as Clerk, be and they are, thereby authorized and directed to execute the same for 


and in behalf of said Board of Commissioners. 


 


 PASSED  AND  ADOPTED,  this  _____  day  of   ____________________,   ______. 


 


 


 


 


ATTEST: 
 


______________________________ BY: ________________________________ 


CLERK      CHAIRMAN 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


STATE OF GEORGIA 
 


COUNTY OF FAYETTE 


 


 I,  ______________________ as Clerk of the Board of Commissioners do hereby certify that I am 


custodian of the books and records of the same, and that the above and foregoing copy of the original is now on 


file in my office, and was passed by the Board of Commissioners. 


 


 Witness by hand and official signature, this the _______ day of __________________,  _______. 


 


 


       BY: ________________________________ 


        CLERK







 


Page 6 of 14 


 


ATTACHMENT NO. 1 


 


MEMORANDUM OF INSTRUCTIONS 
 


 


These instructions are to set forth the procedures necessary for the Political Subdivisions of the State of Georgia to follow 


when acquiring right of way on highway projects where it is proposed to acquire or construct said project with Federal 


participation. The Political Subdivision shall make every effort to acquire expeditiously all real property when authorized 


to proceed. 


 


The Political Subdivision may, when they consider it appropriate, attempt to secure the right of way by donation. To 


assure the property owner is fully informed of his rights, the request for donation must be made in writing and also set 


forth that they are entitled to receive just compensation, if they so desire. A letter prepared by the Department will be 


made available to use as a guide. If a property owner requests payment of just compensation, the provisions of paragraph 


one (1) must be followed.  


 


Nothing herein shall be construed to prevent a person whose real property is being acquired from making a gift or 


donation of such property, or any part thereof, or of any compensation paid therefore, after such person has been fully 


informed of his right to receive just compensation for the acquisition of his property. 


 


1. At the initiation of negotiations each owner must be fully informed of his right to receive just compensation for 


the acquisition of his property.  In order to assure just compensation is being offered, the following steps must be 


taken: 


 


A) A General Certified Appraiser, who is on the Department’s approved list, must utilize an 


 appropriate valuation method (appraisal/data book/cost estimate) as determined by the 


 Department. 
 


B) The appraiser must give the owner or his designated representative an opportunity to accompany 


 him during his inspection of the property.  A statement is to be in the report that this opportunity 


 was provided. 


 


C) The report must be adequately documented to support the conclusion of the appraiser and shall be 


 prepared in accordance with the guidelines set forth by the Department. 


  


D) The Department must review the appraisal and approve in writing the estimated amount of just 


 compensation to be offered to the property owner. 


 


E) The offer must be made in writing for the full amount of the aforesaid estimate of just 


 compensation.   Where appropriate, the written offer must state separately the amount for the real 


 property being acquired  and the amount attributable to damages to the remaining property. 


  


2. No person occupying real property shall be required to move from his home, farm, or business without at least 


three (3) months written notice. 


 


3. The Department will furnish copies of letters, settlement and disbursement statements and such other forms as it 


may deem necessary or desirable. 


 


4.      Copies of all letters, forms, deeds and status reports used in the acquisition of Rights of Way for this project must 


be forwarded to the Department upon request, for future reference. 


 


 


 







 


Page 7 of 14 


5. The County will be responsible for determining benefits and preparing relocation assistance packages.  


 Packages must  be submitted to the Department for review and approval prior to offers of benefits being  made. 


 


6. Any consultant contracted for negotiation services for the acquisition of right of way for the  COUNTY  must 


 hold either a Real Estate License and be affiliated with a broker, or hold a Real Estate Brokers  License  


 in accordance with OCGA 43.40. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







 


Page 8 of 14 


APPENDIX "A” 
 


 


A. COMPLIANCE WITH REGULATIONS: The contractor shall comply with the regulations relative to 


nondiscrimination in Federally-assisted programs of the Department of Transportation, Title 49, Codes of Federal 


Regulations, Part 21, as they may be amended from time to time,  (hereinafter referred to as the regulations), 


which are herein  incorporated by reference and made a part of this contract. 


 


 


B. NONDISCRIMINATION: The contractor, with regard to the work performed by it during the contract, shall not 


discriminate on the grounds of race,  color or national origin in the selection and retention of sub- contractors, 


including procurement of materials and leases of equipment. The contractor shall not participate either directly or 


indirectly in the discrimination prohibited by Section 21.5 of the regulations, including employment practices 


when the contract covers a program set forth in APPENDIX "B" of the regulations. 


 


 


C. SOLICITATIONS FOR SUB-CONTRACTS, INCLUDING PROCUREMENT OF MATERIALS AND  


EQUIPMENT:     In all solicitation either by competitive bidding or negotiation made by the contractor for work 


to be performed under a sub-contract, including procurement of materials or leases of equipment, each potential 


sub-contractor or supplier shall be notified by the contractor of the contractor's obligations under this contract and 


the regulations relative to nondiscrimination on the grounds of race, color or national origin. 


 


 


D. INFORMATION AND REPORTS: The contractor shall provide all information and reports required by the 


regulations, or directives issued pursuant thereto, and shall permit access to its books, records, accounts, other 


sources of information, and its facilities as may be determined by the State Department of Transportation or the 


Federal Highway Administration to be pertinent to ascertain compliance with such regulation or directives. Where 


any information required of a contractor is in the exclusive possession of another who fails or refuses to furnish 


this information, the contractor shall so certify to the State Department of Transportation, or the Federal Highway 


Administration as appropriate,  and shall set forth what efforts it has made to obtain the information. 


 


 


E. SANCTIONS FOR NONCOMPLIANCE: In the event of the contractor's noncompliance with the 


nondiscrimination provisions of this contract, the State Department of Transportation shall impose such contract 


sanctions as it or the Federal Highway Administration may determine to be appropriate, including,  but not limited 


to: 


 


      1. Withholding of payments to the contractor or under the contract until the contractor complies, and/or 


 


2. Cancellation, termination or suspension of the contract, in whole  or in part. 


 


F. INCORPORATION OF PROVISIONS: The contractor shall include the provisions of Paragraphs "A" through 


"F" in every sub-contract, including procurement of materials and leases of equipment, unless exempt by the 


regulations, or directives issued pursuant thereto. The contractor shall take such action with respect to any 


sub-contract or procurement as the State Department of Transportation or Federal Highway Administration may 


direct as a means of enforcing such provisions including sanctions for non-compliance: Provided, however, that, 


in the event a contractor becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a sub-contractor or supplier as 


a result of such direction, the contractor may request the State Department of  Transportation to enter into such 


litigation to protect the interest of the State, and, in addition, the contractor may request the United States to enter  


 into such litigation to protect the interest of the United States. 


 


 


 


 


 







 


Page 9 of 14 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







 


Page 10 of 14 


 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







 


Page 11 of 14 


APPENDIX A (of ADDENDUM 1) 


 
The text below, in its entirety, is in all contracts entered into by GDOT. All of the text except the final section, entitled 


“Incorporation of Provisions,” should be included in any contract entered into by any GDOT contractor. 


During the performance of this contract, the contractor, for itself, its assignees, and successors in interest (hereinafter 
referred to as the “Contractor”), agree as follows: 


 
1.    Compliance with Regulations 


The Contractor shall comply with the Regulations relative to nondiscrimination in federally- assisted programs of 
the Department of Transportation (hereinafter referred to as DOT), Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, part 
21, as they may be amended from time to time, (hereinafter referred to as the Regulations), which are herein 
incorporated by reference and made a part of this contract. 


 
2.    Nondiscrimination 


The Contractor, with regard to the work performed by it during the contract, shall not discriminate on the 
grounds of race, color, or national origin in the selection and retention of subcontractors, including procurement of 
material and leases o f   equipment.  The Contractor shall not participate either directly or indirectly in 
discrimination prohibited by Section 21.5 of the Regulations, including employment practices when the contract 
covers a program set forth in Appendix B of the Regulations. 


 
3.    Solicitations for Subcontracts, Including Procurement of Materials and Equipment 


In all solicitations either by competitive bidding or negotiations made by the Contractor for work to be performed 
under a subcontract, including procurement of materials or leases of equipment, each potential subcontractor or 
supplier shall be notified by the Contractor of the   Contractor’s   obligations   under   this   contract   and   the   
Regulations   relative   to nondiscrimination on the ground of race, color, or national origin. 


 
4.    Information and Reports 


The Contractor shall provide all information and reports required by the Regulations or directives issued 
pursuant thereto, and shall permit access to its books, records, accounts, other  sources  of  information  and  its  
facilities  as  may  be  determined  by  the  Georgia Department of Transportation or the Federal Highway 
Administration to be pertinent to ascertain  compliance  with  such  Regulations,  orders,  and  instructions.  
Where  any information required of a contractor is in the exclusive possession of another who fails or refuses to 
furnish this information, the Contractor shall so certify to the Georgia Department of Transportation, or the Federal 
Highway Administration as appropriate, and shall set forth what efforts it has made to obtain the information. 


 
5.    Sanctions for Noncompliance 


In the event of the Contractor’s noncompliance with the nondiscrimination provisions of this contract, the Georgia 
Department of Transportation shall impose such contract sanctions as it or the Federal Highway Administration 
may determine to be appropriate, including, but not limited to: 


a.  Withholding of payments to the Contractor under the contract until the  Contractor complies; 
and/or 


   b.  Cancellation, termination, or suspension of the contract, in whole or in part. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







 


Page 12 of 14 


6.    Incorporation of Provisions 


The  Contractor  shall  include  the  provisions  of  paragraphs  (1)  through  (5)  in  every subcontract, including 
procurement of materials and leases of equipment, unless exempt by the Regulations, or directives issued 
pursuant thereto. 


 
The Contractor shall take such action with respect to any subcontract or procurement as the Georgia 
Department of Transportation or the Federal Highway Administration may direct as a means of enforcing 
such provisions including sanctions for noncompliance:  
 
Provided, however, that in the event a Contractor becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a 
subcontractor or supplier as a result of such direction, the Contractor may request the Georgia Department of 
Transportation to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the Georgia Department of 
Transportation and, in addition, the Contractor may request the United States to enter into such litigation to 
protect the interests of the United States. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







 


Page 13 of 14 


APPENDIX B (of ADDENDUM 1) 
 
The following clauses shall be included in any and all deeds affecting or recording the transfer of real property, 
structures, or improvements thereon, or interest therein from the United States. 


 
Granting Clause 


 
NOW, THEREFORE, the Department of Transportation, as authorized by law, and upon the condition that 
the Georgia Department of Transportation will accept Title to the lands and maintain the project 
constructed thereon, in accordance with Title 23, United States Code, the Regulations for the Administration 
of Federal Aid for Highways and the policies and procedures prescribed by Federal Highway Administration 
of the Department of Transportation and, also in accordance with and in compliance with all requirements 
imposed by or pursuant to Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Department of Transportation, Subtitle A, 
Office of the Secretary, Part 21, Nondiscrimination in federally assisted programs of the Department of 
Transportation (hereinafter referred to as the Regulations) pertaining to and effectuating the provisions of 
Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (78 Stat. 252; 42 U.S.C. .2000d to 2000d-4), does hereby remise, 
release, quitclaim and convey unto the Georgia Department of Transportation all the right, Title and 
interest of the Department of Transportation in and to said lands described in Exhibit "A" attached hereto 
and made a part hereof. 


 
Habendum Clause 


 
TO  HAVE  AND  TO  HOLD  said  lands  and  interests  therein  unto  Georgia  Department  of 
Transportation  and its  successors forever, subject,  however, to  the  covenants, conditions, restrictions 
and reservations herein contained as follows, which will remain in effect for the period during which the 
real property or structures are used for a purpose for which Federal financial  assistance  is  extended  or  
for  another  purpose  involving  the  provision  of  similar services or benefits and shall be binding on the 
Georgia Department of Transportation, its successors and assigns. 


 
The Georgia Department of Transportation, in consideration or the conveyance of said lands and interests 
in lands, does hereby covenant and agree as a covenant running with the land for itself, its successors and 
assigns, that (1) no person shall on the grounds of race, color, or national origin, he excluded from 
participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination with regard to any 
facility located wholly or in part on over or under such lands hereby conveyed [,] [and)* (2) that the Georgia 
Department of Transportation shall use the lands and interests in lands and interests in lands so conveyed, 
in compliance with all requirements imposed by or pursuant to Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, 
Department of Transportation,  Subtitle  A,  Office  of  the  Secretary,  Part  21,  Nondiscrimination  in  
federally assisted programs of the Department of Transportation - Effectuation of Title VI of the Civil 
Rights Act of 1964, and as said Regulations may be amended [,] and (3) that in the event of breach of any 
of the above-mentioned nondiscrimination conditions, the Department shall have a  right to reenter said 
lands and facilities on said land, and the above described land and facilities shall thereon revert to and 
vest in and become the absolute property of the Department 
of Transportation and its assigns as such interest existed prior to this instruction.


1 


 


 
 


 
1 


Reverter clause and related language to be used only when it is determined that such a clause is necessary in order to effectuate the purposes of 


Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







 


Page 14 of 14 


APPENDIX C (of ADDENDUM 1) 
 
The following clauses shall be included in all deeds, licenses, leases, permits, or similar instruments  entered  into  by  
the  Georgia  Department  of  Transportation  pursuant  to  the provisions of Assurance 6(a). 


 
The  (grantee,  licensee,  lessee,  permitee,  etc.,  as  appropriate)  for  himself,  his  heirs,  personal 
representatives, successors in interest, and assigns, as a part of the consideration hereof, does hereby 
covenant and agree [in the case of deeds and leases add "as a covenant running with the land"] that in the 
event facilities are constructed, maintained, or otherwise operated on the said property described in this (deed, 
license, lease, permit, etc.) for a purpose for which a Department of Transportation program or activity is 
extended or for another purpose involving the provision of similar services or benefits, the (grantee, licensee, 
lessee, permitee, etc.) shall maintain and operate such facilities and services in compliance with all other 
requirements imposed pursuant to Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Department of Transportation, SubTitle 
A, office of the Secretary, Part 
21,  Nondiscrimination  in  Federally-assisted  programs  of  the  Department  of  Transportation  - Effectuation 
of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, and as said Regulations may be amended. 
 
[Include in licenses, leases, permits, etc.]* 
That in the event of breach of any of the above nondiscrimination covenants, Georgia Department of 
Transportation shall have the right to terminate the [license, lease, permit, etc.] and to re-enter and repossess 
said land and the facilities thereon, and hold the same as if said [licenses, lease, permit, etc.] had never been 
made or issued. 
 
[Include in deed.]* 
That in the event of breach of any of the above nondiscrimination covenants, Georgia Department of 
Transportation shall have the right to reenter said lands and facilities thereon, and the above described 
lands and facilities shall thereupon revert to and vest in and become the absolute property of Georgia Department 
of Transportation and its assigns. 
 
The following shall be included in all deeds, licenses, leases, permits, or similar agreements entered  into  by  Georgia  
Department  of  Transportation  pursuant  to  the  provisions  of Assurance 6(b). 
 


The   (grantee,   licensee,   lessee,   permitee,   etc.,   as   appropriate)   for   himself,   his   personal 
representatives, successors in interest, and assigns, as a part of the consideration hereof, does hereby 
covenant and agree (in the case of deeds, and leases add "as a covenant running with the land") that (1) no 
person on the ground of race, color. or national origin shall be excluded from participation in, denied the 
benefits of, or he otherwise subjected to discrimination in the use of said facilities, (2) that in the construction of 
any improvements on, over or under such land and the furnishing of services thereon, no person on the 
ground of, race, color, or national origin shall be excluded from participation in, denied the benefits of, or 
otherwise be subjected to discrimination, (3) that the (grantee, licensee, lessee, permitee, etc.) shall use the 
premises in compliance with all other requirements imposed by or pursuant to Title 49, Code of Federal 
Regulations. Department of Transportation, SubTitle A, Office of the Secretary. Part 21, Nondiscrimination in 
Federally-assisted programs of the Department of Transportation- Effectuation of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 
1964), and as said Regulations may be amended. 
 
 [Include in licenses, leases, permits, etc.]* 
That in the event of breach of any of the above nondiscrimination covenants, Georgia Department of 
Transportation shall have the right to terminate the [license, lease, permit, etc.] and to reenter and repossess 
said land and the facilities thereon, and hold the same as if said [license, lease, permit, etc.] had never been 
made or issued. 
 
[Include in deeds]* 
That in the event of breach of any of the above nondiscrimination covenants, Georgia Department of 
Transportation  shall  have  the  right  to  reenter  said land  and facilities  there-on, and  the above described 
lands and facilities shall thereupon revert to and vest in and become the absolute property of Georgia Department 
of Transportation and its assigns. 


 
* Reverter clause and related language to be used only when it is determined that such a clause is necessary in order to effectuate the purposes of 
Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964. 







"P1: 33 \65?S~,-.~~~:,~ 
Kooping Georgia on thO!> Moye 


GEORGIA SECURITY AND IMMIGRATION COMPLIANCE ACT AFFIDAVIT 


Contract No. and Name:	 COi\.tr14c.t -to! Acqv\sitio,\ of Rljh+ oT Wa.~ 


Co" 3'0!mc-Intosh. l?<l@ fl\l\+- 1~-'1Ie-., (5R5L£-IOSQ-OC(ooi)) 
Name of Contracting Entity: FCt.\! ~.:\t e... Co IJ 'n.+y


I 


By executing this affidavit, the undersigned person or entity verifies its compliance with a.e.G.A. 
§ 13-10-91, stating affirmatively that the individual, firm, or corporation which is contracting with the 
Georgia Department of Transportation has registered with, is authorized to participate in, and is 
participating in the federal work authorization program commonly known as E-Verify, * in accordance 
with the applicable provisions and deadlines established in a.e.G.A. § 13-10-91. 


The undersigned person or entity further agrees that it will continue to use the federal work 
authorization program throughout the contract period, and it will contract for the physical performance 
of services in satisfaction of such contract only with subcontractors who present an affidavit to the 
undersigned with the information required by a.e.GA. § 13-10-91(b). 


The undersigned person or entity further agrees to maintain records of such compliance and 
provide a copy of each such verification to the Georgia Department of Transportation at the time the 
subcontractor(s) is retained to perform such service. 


EEV I E-VerifyTM User Identification Number	 Date of Authorization 


BY: Authorized Officer or Agent Date 
(Name of Person or Entity) 


Title of Authorized Officer or Agent 


Printed Name of Authorized Officer or Agent 


SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN 
BEFORE ME ON THIS THE 


DAY OF	 ,201 


[NOTARY SEAL] 


Notary Public 


My Commission Expires:	 _ 


• or any subsequent replacement operated by the United States Department of Homeland Security or any equivalent federal work 
authorization program operated by the United States Department of Homeland Security to verify information of newly hired employees, 
pursuant to the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986 (IRCA), P.L. 99-603 


Revised 8/22/11 







Revised 2-9-2012 per new PFA Attachment A from GDOT
Revised 6-4-2012 for presentation to Spalding BOC


Fayette Spalding State Federal
Preconstruction Engineering (Phase I)


Engineering $68,445 $68,445 $0 $0
Surveying $15,000 $15,000 $0 $0
Environmental $20,000 $20,000 $0 $0
PE Oversight $0 $0 $12,578 $50,312
PE Total $103,445 $103,445 $12,578 $50,312 $269,780
% by Agency 38% 38% 5% 19%


Right-of-Way (Phase II)
Land & Improvements $10,125 $12,375 $0 $0 $22,500
Valuation Services $2,700 $3,300 $0 $0 $6,000
Legal Services $18,090 $22,110 $0 $0 $40,200
Relocation (taxes, property pins) $3,600 $4,400 $0 $0 $8,000
Demolition $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Administrative $15,975 $19,525 $0 $0 $35,500
ROW Total $51,000 $62,000 $0 $0 $113,000
% by Agency 45% 55% 0% 0%


Construction (Phase III) 0.000 0.769


Asphalt (12.5, 19, 25 MM and tack) $11,955 $11,955 $0 $79,598 $103,509
Base $5,187 $5,187 $0 $34,533 $44,906
Concrete Approach Slabs and Drives $3,027 $3,027 $0 $20,152 $26,205
Bridge $194,594 $194,594 $0 $1,295,611 $1,684,800
Drainage pipes and structures $3,682 $3,682 $0 $24,513 $31,876
Guardrail $5,994 $5,994 $0 $39,911 $51,900
Earthwork $20,963 $20,963 $0 $139,574 $181,500
Rock (contingency) $2,096 $2,096 $0 $13,957 $18,150
Erosion Control and Channel Protection $12,473 $12,473 $0 $83,044 $107,990
Traffic Control - Temporary $5,775 $5,775 $0 $38,450 $50,000
Clear & Grub $578 $578 $0 $3,845 $5,000
Landscaping $5,775 $5,775 $0 $38,450 $50,000
Traffic Control Signs $1,040 $1,040 $0 $6,921 $9,000
Striping (thermoplastic) $186 $186 $0 $1,240 $1,612
Exist. Bridge Demolition $20,136 $20,136 $0 $134,067 $174,340
Exist. Road Demolition $3,925 $3,925 $0 $26,135 $33,986
Contingency $32,083 $32,083 $0 $213,611 $277,777
CST Total $329,470 $329,470 $0 $2,193,612 $2,852,551
% by Agency 11.6% 11.6% 0.0% 76.9%


Utility (Phase IV)
8" Water (non-reimbursable) $0 $35,000 $0 $0 $35,000
Power, cable, phone (non-reimbursable) $10,800 $9,200 $0 $0 $20,000
Power, cable, phone (reimbursable) $18,900 $16,100 $0 $0 $35,000
Reimbursable Amount -$18,900 -$16,100 $0 $0 -$35,000
UTL Total $10,800 $44,200 $0 $0 $55,000
% by Agency 20% 80% 0% 0%


Construction Oversight (Phases V & VI)
Testing $25,000 $25,000 $0 $0 $50,000
Inspection $27,610 $27,610 $0 $0 $55,220
UTL Total $52,610 $52,610 $0 $0 $105,220
% by Agency 50% 50% 0% 0%


Total by Agency $547,325 $591,725 $12,578 $2,243,924 $3,395,551


Cost Sharing Estimate for McIntosh Bridge Replacement (PI 331650)
Estimates Based on Concept Report Cost Estimates


M:\SPLOST Projects\(B-6) McIntosh Bridge Improvements\ENGINEERING\B-6 Funding Table revised 6-4-12.xls 6/4/2012



fjones

Typewritten Text

Backup Item B





		Public Works- McIntosh Bridge...tract Agenda Request File

		Public Works- McIntosh Bridge ROW Contract Backup

		Public Works- McIntosh Bridge ROW Contract Backup

		B-6 Funding Table revised 6-4-12












COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also 


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Water System Tony Parrott


Consideration of the Water Committee's recommendation to award a bid for Supervisory Control and Data Collection (SCADA) Upgrades 


to J.K. Duren Company, Inc., in the amount of $299,500.00, and authorization for the Chairman to sign the contract and related 


documents.


The Water System  uses a radio telemetry system for communication and monitoring between the water plants, pump stations, water 


tanks and valves within the distribution system.  The current system, referred to as a SCADA system, is an analog system and needs 


updating to a digital system, which is a requirement by the FCC.  The original system was installed in the 90's and has been updated a 


couple of times when additions were added to the Water System.  J.K. Duren installed the original system as a sub-contractor when the 


Crosstown Water Plant was built.   


 


In Fiscal Year 2013, the Purchasing Department, along with Mallett Consulting, sent three companies that approached Mallett Consulting 


for bid packages but only one responded to the bid.  The other two companies did not feel that the contract time was long enough.  The 


bid response has been thoroughly reviewed by David Jaeger, Ted Burgess and Steve Rapson.  Mr. Jaeger also had the bid reviewed by 


a third-party, Atlanta Consulting Engineers, who concluded that the bid prices appeared to be reasonable. 


Approval of the Water Committee's recommendation to award a bid for Supervisory Control and Data Collection (SCADA) Upgrades to J.


K. Duren Company, Inc., in the amount of $299,500.00, and authorization for the Chairman to sign the contract and related documents.


Funds are available in the Renewal & Extension fund. (50541100-610915)


No


Yes


Yes


Yes Yes


ConsentTuesday, July 9, 2013

















		Water System- SCADA Upgrades Agenda Request File

		Water System- SCADA Upgrades Backup

		05-24-2012Minutes

		Water System- SCADA Upgrades Backup












MinutesMinutesMinutesMinutes
Board of Commissioners


June 27, 2013
 7:00 P.M.


The Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, met in Official Session on June 27, 2013 at 7:00 p.m. in the
Public Meeting Room of the Fayette County Administrative Complex, 140 Stonewall Avenue, Fayetteville, Georgia.


Commissioners Present: Steve Brown, Chairman
Charles Oddo, Vice Chairman
David Barlow
Allen McCarty
Randy Ognio


Staff Present: Steve Rapson, County Administrator
Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk
Dennis Davenport, Interim County Attorney


________________________________________________________________________________________________


Call to Order, Invocation, Pledge of Allegiance


Chairman Brown called the June 27, 2013 Board of Commissioners meeting to order at 7:01 p.m.
County Clerk Floyd Jones offered the Invocation.
Commissioner McCarty led the audience in the Pledge of Allegiance.


Acceptance of Agenda


Chairman Brown moved to accept the Agenda with the exception of New Business Item Number 11, and for New
Business Item Number 11 to be left off the Agenda.  Commissioner Ognio seconded the motion.  No discussion
followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


PRESENTATION / RECOGNITION:


1. Proclamation of “Days of Remembrance” in accordance of the 150th Anniversary of the Battle of
Gettysburg.


Chairman Brown introduced Mr. Matt Blackburn and his family to the audience.  Mr. Blackburn interned with
Fayette County throughout the month of June, and prepared the Proclamation of “Days of Remembrance”
in accordance of the 150th Anniversary of the Battle of Gettysburg.   Mr. Blackburn read the proclamation.  A
copy of the proclamation, identified as “Attachment 1", follows these minutes and is made an official part
hereof. 







Minutes
June 27, 2013
Page Number 2


2. Recognition of the promotion of Fire Chief David Scarbrough and Deputy Fire Chief Tom Bartlett.


Chairman Brown announced that the County had a couple of gentlemen who were serving in interim
positions, and those positions were “becoming final.”  He first introduced Fire Chief David Scarbrough and
spoke of Chief Scarbrough’s qualifications.  Chief Scarbrough was then presented and pinned with his Fire
Chief badge.  Chairman Brown next introduced Deputy Fire Chief Tom Bartlett and spoke of Deputy Fire
Chief Bartlett’s qualifications.  Deputy Chief Bartlett was then presented and pinned with his Deputy Fire
Chief badge.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 2", follows these minutes and is made an
official part hereof.


PUBLIC HEARING:


3. Public Hearing on the County’s proposed annual budget for Fiscal Year 2014 which begins July 1,
2013 and ends June 30, 2014, and consideration of Resolution 2013-14 adopting the Fiscal Year
2014 budget.


County Administrator Steve Rapson explained that this was the final public hearing with regard to the
adoption of the Fiscal Year 2014 budget.  He told the Board that there were no changes from the June 13,
2013 public hearing, and so there was no presentation to be given.


Lee Hearn: Mr. Hearn spoke for twenty minutes expressing his concerns about the “fiscal cliff that looms
ahead for Fayette County.”  Mr. Hearn’s comments included concerns about:


A) Changes to the Defined Benefit Pension Plan, including not funding the plan for Fiscal Year 2014.


B) Inequitable Local Option Sales Tax (LOST) negotiations.


C) Operating transfers from Special Revenue Funds to the General Fund. 


D) Lack of funding for the Recreation Department.


E) Continuation of Stormwater Utility Fees and budgeting for a Stormwater Special Purpose Local
Option Sales Tax (SPLOST).


F) Effects on Public Safety with the “dismantling” of the Marshal’s Department and the small number
of Sheriff’s vehicles being replaced.


G) Lack of funding for the Road Department for vehicles and heavy equipment.


Mr. Hearn also expressed concerns about the Capital Improvement Plan, including:


A) The location of $2.38 million of Criminal Justice Center 2000 bond issue “that the County didn’t
even know it had”, and questions about how the money would be spent.


B) No new technology improvements being proposed except those that the previous Board funded for
the Technology Strategic Plan.







Minutes
June 27, 2013
Page Number 3


C) Questions about where future funding for Capital Improvement Projects would come from.


D) The removal of funding from the “recreation function.”


Mr. Hearn asked Chairman Brown to explain how the County had deficit budgets when the undesignated
cash reserve increased during three of the four years he was in office; two of those years serving with Mr.
Brown.  He stated that the current Board inherited “over $300 million in undesignated cash reserves during
declining revenues”, and that meant “great budgeting” not deficit budgeting.  He recalled that County
Administrator Steve Rapson said firefighters and Sheriff’s deputies could retire at age fifty-five, but that he
failed to mention that the Board removed their health insurance coverage if they had twenty years of
service and had reached age fifty-five.  He closed saying that his family has been paying taxes in Fayette
County for five generations, and to expect to see him often.  A copy of Mr. Hearn’s manuscript that he read,
identified as “Attachment 3", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


Emory McHugh: Mr. McHugh spoke for about 28 minutes about his concerns with the proposed Fiscal
Year 2014 budget.  Mr. McHugh’s spoke about his personal and professional qualifications.  He also spoke
about the impossible task given to former County Administrator Jack Krakeel and current County
Administrator Steve Rapson before he commented on why he could not be a “team player” with the current
Board for the following reasons: 


A) Concerns that reductions to health insurance expenditures essentially balanced a large part of the
budget on the backs of employees.


B) Fayette County is no longer competitive with other jurisdictions in the area of benefits, and that this
will lead to an exodus of all good, trained employees.


C) Changes are hurting workers financially, killing employee morale, and taking away incentives to do
a good job.


D) The Board is providing the necessary ingredients for the “Fraud Triangle”.  Essentially, the Board
is providing employees with opportunity, pressure, and rationalization to commit fraud.  He
mentioned that he thought “that you can basically make any employee dishonest” and that if he
were a dishonest employee he could have “easily taken the $2.38 million that your CFO and
auditors didn’t even know existed.”


E) Concerns that the financial pain inflicted upon employees was entirely unnecessary.


F) Concerns about the Board’s failure to negotiate a fair Local Option Sales Tax (LOST) agreement,
and the financial ramifications of the negotiated LOST agreement.  He spoke about the amount of
rollback he received on his County M&O property taxes as compared to Chairman Steve Brown
and Chief Financial Officer Mary Parrott, who live in Peachtree City and Fayetteville, respectively.
He suggested that the Board’s agreement with the cities was a worse deal for him and a better
deal for Chairman Brown.  He mentioned that if the Board members felt compelled to send money
to help pay taxes for the poor Delta pilots in Peachtree City, that they use their own checkbooks
and leave his tax money alone.







Minutes
June 27, 2013
Page Number 4


G) Angst about the $1 million that the Board decided to withhold in terms of contributions to the
Defined Benefit Plan, the results of not funding the plan, and how Georgia law requires local
governments to fund their pension plans.


H) Concerns about how the actuary determines the liability of the pension fund and the assumptions
that are used in making the determinations.


I) Concerns over “Other Financing Sources” that are not really revenues but represent transfers or
the movement of monies from other budgeted funds.  He suggested that the Board decided to
transfer or “steal” $571,000 from the Fire, E-911, EMS and Street Lights Special Tax District Funds
to balance the budget.


J) Concerns with “Appropriated Fund Balance” which is the reassignment or re-designation of funds
that have been budgeted in previous years for other projects.


K) Questioning whether the Clerk of Superior Court, Sheila Studdard, gave up $71,428.00 in jury
script fees, and asking how many people believed she would refuse to pay jurors who have
performed their jury duty as required by law.


L) Questioning why the Board thought it was a good idea to lose $7.8 million in this next year in
economic value alone.


M) Concerns about the length of time it would take to replace the County’s fleet, including Public
Safety vehicles and necessary equipment.


N) Intrigue about the Stormwater Utility, how it is still around after six months of the Tea Party being
in total control, and how the Fiscal Year 2014 budget actually contains funding for an election this
fall for the voters to approve a Special Purpose Local Option Sales Tax (SPLOST) to fix
Stormwater infrastructure.  He suggested the real reason for the SPLOST vote was to keep the
Tea Party in power.


O) His belief that money currently exists to make needed Stormwater Infrastructure Improvements,
but instead of spending the money on those purposes, the Board intends to pay for other projects
on their list.


P) Concerns that the future of Fayette County will reflect what has already occurred in Fayetteville
and Peachtree City, both of which have had economic problems, and that the Tea Party’s
philosophy is one that would have the citizens in the right frame of mind to vote a tax increase
upon themselves.


Mr. McHugh closed his statements saying the Tea Party has attacked the messenger as a “disgruntled
employee”, “name caller” and “not a team player” because they do not have any answers when the right
questions are asked or the true facts are presented.  A copy of the manuscript Mr. McHugh read, identified
as “Attachment 4", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.







Minutes
June 27, 2013
Page Number 5


Bob Ross: Mr. Ross commented on the length of time the previous speakers took with their comments,
and he pointed out that no member of the current Board is a member of the Fayette County Issues Tea
Party.  He said he knew that fact since he is the co-founder of the Fayette County Issues Tea Party, that he
knows it better than anybody, and that he maintains the roster and website.  Mr. Ross also spoke of his
support for the proposed Fiscal Year 2014 budget before he thanked County staff and leadership for their
work on the budget.


Frank Gardner: Mr. Gardner spoke about the comments given by Mr. Hearn and Mr. McHugh, and he
reminded everyone that it was the previous Board that implemented the Stormwater Utility Fee that charged
everyone in rural Fayette County. He was amazed that, even though Mr. Hearn and Mr. McHugh did not
attend the three Stormwater Town Hall meetings they “bash” the Commissioners who are listening to the
people.  He thanked the Board for working on behalf of the citizens of Fayette County.  


County Administrator Steve Rapson: County Administrator Rapson replied to the concerns expressed by
Mr. Hearn and Mr. McHugh.  Specifically, Mr. Rapson replied to the concerns expressed about: 


A) The Defined Benefits Pension Program


B) Local Option Sales Tax (LOST) renegotiations.


C) Operating Transfers.


D) Allocations made to Peachtree City and Tyrone so that Fayette County citizens can participate in
city recreation programs without having to pay surcharges.


E) Stormwater Utility and the proposed Stormwater SPLOST ballot issue.


F) Public Safety and the Marshal’s Office.


G) Sheriff’s vehicle replacements.


H) The $2.3 million associated with the Criminal Justice Center, and how a portion of the money
would fund the Justice Center and the other part of the funds would be used to renovate the old
jail.


I)  The reasoning behind why the Recreation Department and the Technology Plan was not funded
as requested.


J) The Five Year Capital Improvement Plan and the Vehicle Equipment Replacement Plan.  


K) Public Integrity and Trust, and the importance the Board, staff and he places on integrity and trust. 
He said he has an open door policy, and that Mr. McHugh could have come to him at any time
from January to May discuss the issues he raised.


L) The employee Health Plan.


M) Employee morale.







Minutes
June 27, 2013
Page Number 6


N) How Mr. McHugh was trying to do linear math with pension plans, when pension plans are
actuarial based.  He agreed with Mr. McHugh that the ACCG Actuarial Tables and the
assumptions the ACCG Defined Benefit Plan used were bad, but that he had not met a plan that
would let him change their assumptions.


O) The “Transfer Interfund Operations”.


P) That Clerk of Court Sheila Studdard did lower her jury witness fees, and she did so in conjunction
with working with the Superior Court judges.


Q) The aging Public Works equipment and fleet, but while the County may have $12 million worth of
expense that is vehicles and equipment, the county also has $5 million funded to pay for it.  


Mr. Rapson closed his reply saying that in Fiscal Year 2013, Fayette County spent $6 million in fund
balance just so its checks would clear, and that when $6 million is used out of fund balance there is a
problem.  He said the option is to either raise property taxes or reduce spending, and the Board chose to
make some hard decisions.  He said it is the same type of decisions Fayette’s residents have been making
for the past five or six years, and the decision was to reduce spending.  He explained the reductions were a
collaborative effort made up of elected officials, Constitutional Officers, the Justice System and County
management.  He said everyone came together and made hard decisions, and that the decisions were
made publically and with complete transparency.  He explained that the changes that were put into place
for Human Resources, financial policies, the retirement plan, and the medical plan will impact all future
years.  He told the Board that his focus was to do what was in the best interest of Fayette County by using
a three-to-four year outlook and by focusing on implementing best practices.  He said this approach made
making those hard decisions a lot easier.  Mr. Rapson reported that the Fiscal Year 2014 budget was
balanced, and it was done so without using fund balance, without a property tax increase, and without
reductions in service delivery.  He added that the budget was also balanced including the one-time
incentive salary adjustment.  He thanked Chief Financial Officer Mary Parrott, Budget Officer Sergio
Acevedo, the Finance staff, and the Constitutional Officers.  He said the management team had
accomplished this budget over the last five months, and that while there was still work to be done, it was a
good start.  A copy of a transcript detailing Mr. Rapson’s comments, identified as “Attachment 5", follows
these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


Chief Financial Officer Mary Parrott: Chief Financial Officer Mary Parrott replied to a concern that Mr.
McHugh addressed during his comments. She said she understood Mr. McHugh to say that the County did
not know that it had $2.38 million and that he could have taken the money and left.  She said she begged to
differ since the $2.38 million was in the County’s bank account.  She said the issue is that it was in a
different fund since it is associated with the Bond Issue of the Criminal Justice Fund.  She said it was not in
that fund, but it was a fixed asset fund.  She concluded that the funds were moved to the right place, that
they were not lost, and that the County actually reconciles its cash every day.


County Administrator Steve Rapson: County Administrator Rapson added that the county would issue a
press release after the meeting, since Moody’s in New York City had indicated that they wanted to review
the County’s bond rating in order to reaffirm the bond rating.  He reported that Moody’s actually had
reaffirmed the County at an Aa Bond Rating with a positive outlook.  He read a portion of the letter to the
Board, and explained Moody’s rational for why Fayette County was rated the way it is rated.  He concluded
that the County had missed an Aaa Bond Rating based on the deficit budgeting that has occurred in the last







Minutes
June 27, 2013
Page Number 7


few years. He stated the letter from Moody’s would be shared with the press at the end of the meeting as
well. Copies of the consulting letter, research document, and press release, identified as “Attachment 6",
follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.


Commissioner Oddo: Commissioner Oddo commented that there were some concerns expressed about
the lack of transparency from this Board.  He pointed out that there had been almost two hours of talking
about what was going on in Fayette County, and that it signified that the County was pretty transparent.


Commissioner Ognio moved to approve the Fiscal Year 2014 budget as it stands.  Commissioner Barlow
and Commissioner McCarty seconded the budget.


Commissioner Ognio: Commissioner Ognio pointed out that Mr. McHugh made a great point to do away
with the Defined Benefit Program toward the end of his speech, and that he basically made the case that a
Defined Benefit Pension Program was unsustainable no matter how much money was thrown at it.  He said
he did not know how Mr. McHugh could be complaining about what the Board did to the plan, and that it
was his opinion that the Defined Benefit Plan “needed to go”.  He explained that Mr. Rapson made changes
that may save the Defined Benefit Plan; although that is yet to be seen.  He said he wanted everyone to
know that Defined Benefit Plans across the municipalities have gone bankrupt leaving no retirement plan
for retirees.


Commissioner McCarty: Commissioner McCarty said that if a person retired on the Defined Benefits Plan,
then the County would lose that person while paying a goodly portion of what he was making.  And then
that retired employee has to be replaced with someone else, and the County would have to pay that person
as well.  So there are two salaries going out while there is only one working person left.  He said he was
against the Defined Benefit Pension Plan from the beginning, and that the County Administrator had done
an excellent job of resolving the issue the Board had with it.


Chairman Brown: Chairman Brown stated that if an entity got into intense deficit spending and into a
retirement plan that Mr. McHugh indicated could not be afforded, that there was a name for it: the State of
California and the City of Detroit.  He said both entities have been run into the ground, and other entities
across the United States are also running into the ground since they are bankrupt.  He implied that Fayette
County was different since it has created a balanced budget.  Chairman Brown then spoke about the
Stormwater Utility saying that he opposed “the wretched piece of ordinance”.  He reminded everyone that
the Board held three Town Hall Meetings, and that several people recommended a Stormwater Special
Purpose Local Option Sales Tax (SPLOST).  He said the County was looking at the issue and that the
SPLOST was proposed for two years in order to raise money to fix the problems.  Chairman Brown
commented on how previous Boards did not replace vehicles unless they fell apart or crashed.  He thought
it was hypocritical for someone to criticize the Board for saying “We’re making vehicles go a little longer on
mileage” when the previous Boards did not replace any vehicles to the point that there were sixty vehicles
requested to be replaced in one year.  He said that practice was bad and negligent.  Chairman Brown
invited Mr. Hearn to look at previous budgets to see what deficit spending looked like.  He also commented
on how the recent Local Option Sales Tax (LOST) renegotiations unified the county and made everyone
believe they had done something right, but that Mr. Hearn and Mr. McHugh were complaining about that. 
Chairman Brown responded to Mr. McHugh’s comments by telling about how his wife attended the finest
medical school in the world, and how those bills were paid for another ten to fifteen years.  Concerning the
Delta pilots, Chairman Brown thanked God for them saying many of them had served in the Air Force,
Army, Marines, and the Navy, and many had flown combat missions.  He said he was grateful for the Delta







Minutes
June 27, 2013
Page Number 8


pilots that Mr. McHugh did not like, and he thought they were wonderful people.  Chairman Brown thought
Mr. McHugh’s point that Mr. Hearn and Mr. Horgan could not raise taxes like they wanted to in order to pay
for deficit spending was foolish.  He pointed out that the current Board made a promise to balance the
budget, and the Board kept that promise.  He agreed that County Administrator Rapson had asked to make
the changes in a two year time span, but that the Board limited him to one year.  He said the Board wanted
to get the issue over with, and then move forward in a positive direction in future years.  Chairman Brown
closed his comments saying he appreciated people like Mr. Gardner who make their complaints, but who
also contribute to the resolution of those complaints.


Commissioner McCarty: Commissioner McCarty said he was still “against the Stormwater”, but it is a
situation that was inherited and that has to be fixed.  He stated that he was stuck with it, but the Board
would devise the best way it could, with the public’s help, on how to fix the problem.  


County Administrator Rapson asked for the dollar amount of the budget to be read into the record before
the Board made their vote.


Commissioner Barlow: Commissioner Barlow commented on the issues raised by Mr. Hearn and Mr.
McHugh.  He pointed out that Mr. Pat Hinchey, who was sitting in the audience, and Mr. Bob Ross had
opposed the Defined Benefit Pension Plan for years.  He recalled when Ms. Mary Holland made the
comment that the county would spend millions of dollars more than an insurance plan was estimated to
cost.  He thought it was interesting that Mr. Hearn and Mr. McHugh kept complaining about how the County
was not transparent, although it is the current Board who exposed what the previous Boards were doing. 
He continued that he videotaped the February 2013 budget meeting, and that the video is loaded onto
YouTube for people to watch.  He suggested that the video would show Mr. Krakeel “who staged one of the
greatest financial frauds in my memory” when he set up the Early Retirement Initiative Program (ERIP) and
stated “If you do what I suggest you do, we’re going to save the County two million dollars.”  Commissioner
Barlow said that was the biggest lie perpetrated on the citizens, and that was when he started campaigning
to become a County Commissioner.  He said he volunteered and was elected to listen to the people, but to
listen to lies is not acceptable.  He reminded everyone that he informed Mr. Hearn on the record, “God is
not mocked.  For whatsoever a man soweth, so shall he reap.”  He said he never heard Mr. Hearn discuss
the budget in the three years that he videotaped the Commission meetings.  He found it interesting that Mr.
Hearn was coming up with “all this fine, wonderful, intellectual reasoning about the budget when I never,
ever heard him say anything for the three years that I sat in these meetings and videotaped the meetings.”


Commissioner Ognio amended his motion to approve Resolution 2013-14 adopting the Fiscal Year 2014
budget of $76,392,796.  Commissioner Barlow seconded the amended motion.  No discussion followed. 
The motion passed unanimously.  A copy of the request and Resolution 2013-14, identified as “Attachment
7", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


PUBLIC COMMENT:


Roy Bishop: Mr. Bishop said he lived on Westbridge Road and that he was glad that Public Works Director Phil
Mallon was in attendance.  He asked why the citizens were not given a progress report or perhaps a completion date
on the work occurring on Westbridge Road.  He asked if Mr. Mallon could put an end date on the project.  He also
asked why a 44-foot wide bridge was being built on a 24-foot road.  Mr. Bishop continued that while he understood







Minutes
June 27, 2013
Page Number 9


the current Board’s hands were tied with respect to some on-going construction projects; he did not think that
someone who has already been voted out of office should be able to sign a long-term contract that is going to tie the
next Board’s hands.  


County Administrator Rapson replied that he would provide Mr. Bishop the information he requested via email.


Donald Fowler: Mr. Fowler, a resident on Hood Road, asked for the Board’s help concerning zoning issues.  He
briefly spoke about when the Board rezoned property for Pinewood Studios in March 2013, and how the Board said
it did not want Pinewood Studios to develop into a small city.  He then told of how the City of Fayetteville was trying
to annex the property and surrounding areas, and how the City of Fayetteville wanted to rezone the annexed
properties.  Mr. Fowler explained that signs that were posted along the roads advertising the potential annexation
and that the signs indicated that the properties would be rezoned from an R-70 classification to a C-70 classification. 
He continued saying that he attended two public hearings, and learned that the property was really going to be
rezoned to a PCD classification.  He said the City of Fayetteville has acknowledged the mistake, and that the city
would have to re-advertise the rezoning issue and would have to correct its signs. Mr. Fowler then asked the Board
to convey to the city that it opposes rezoning property near Hood Road to the PCD classification, and he asked the
Board to try to provide relief for the homeowners along Hood Road.  On a second concern, Mr. Fowler asked the
County to look into the issue of heavy trucks using Sandy Creek Road as a “through-road” even though there were
posted signs disallowing that use.


Bob Ross: Mr. Ross corrected his comments made during the Public Hearing portion of the meeting.  He said he
may have referred to a roster for the Fayette County Issues Tea Party, but that there is no roster.  He said there is
simply an email list that goes out, and that there are Democrats on the list, there are members of the Fayette County
NAACP on the list, and that the roster is open to anybody and that he is happy to have everybody on the list. He
repeated that there is no formal membership to the Fayette County Issues Tea Party.  He also asked the Board if the
County Administrator could give an analysis of the comments made about the “flight of all of our people because of
all of the evils of the DP plan.”


County Administrator Steve Rapson replied that the County has had maybe less than ten people who have left in the
last five months that he has been at the County.  He explained half of those who left wanted to go and work in the
South Dakota oilfields, and about half of those people have come back to the County.  He said the County has not
seen a huge exodus in regards to positions, nor does the County have a problem filling vacancies.  He repeated that
he has not seen an exodus, and that he has approved every position that has been hired since he has been at the
County, and that he thought there had been less than eight.


Gene Key: Mr. Key said he was a neighbor of Donald Fowler.  He said there were fifteen families on Hood Road,
and, if they knew what Mr. Fowler found out today, they would have been at the meeting to beg the Board to try to
get some relief from the city.  He said Mr. Fowler represented all fifteen families on Hood Road, and he wanted the
Board to know that it was not just one man making a case.  He said he appreciated the Board very much as it relates
to the budget and that the Board had done a fine job.  He said he had lived in Fayette County for forty years, and this
was the first time in forty years that he really felt good about the group of Commissioners that Fayette County has.
He said it was good that they were working together and working with the cities, and that is what was needed all this
time.  He said the Board had done what no other commission had done since he came to Fayette County forty years
ago.







Minutes
June 27, 2013
Page Number 10


CONSENT AGENDA:


Commissioner Ognio asked to table Consent Agenda Item 6 until the July 9, 2013 Board of Commissioners meeting. 
Commissioner Barlow seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


Chairman Brown asked to remove Consent Agenda Item 7.  


Commissioner Oddo moved to approve the remaining items on the Consent Agenda, specifically Item Numbers 4
and 5.  Commissioner Barlow seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


4. Approval of the County Administrator’s recommendation to enter into a Memorandum of
Understanding between Fayette County and the City of Fayetteville for the Co-Location of Fayette
County Ambulance at Fayetteville Fire Station 91.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment
8", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


5. Approval of staff’s request to authorize Enviroprobe, LLC. to perform asbestos cleanup at 395 Oak
Hill Drive, Fayetteville, in the amount of $6,787.00, to recover said funds by attaching a lien on the
property, and to approve a Right of Entry Agreement which allows the County to access the
property, assume responsibility for the cleanup, and to attach the lien for all associated costs.  A
copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 9", follows these minutes and is made an official part
hereof.


6. Approval of staff’s recommendation to award Bid #859 and Alternative Bid #2 to Tractor and
Equipment Company, in the amount of $342,712.85, for the purchase of a Gradall XL4100 Wheeled
Excavator with a 60" ditching bucket, 48" excavating bucket, and a tree limb shear, and
authorization for the Chairman to sign any contract or related documents pertaining to this request.


This item was tabled until the July 9, 2013 Board of Commissioners meeting.  A copy of this request,
identified as “Attachment 10", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


7. Approval of the May 23, 2013 Board of Commissioners Special Called Meeting Minutes, and the
June 13, 2013 Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes.


Chairman Brown noted that some suggested changes were made by the Board for the June 13, 2013
Minutes, and that the suggested changes were not made prior to the minutes being distributed to the public. 
Chairman Brown then read the suggested changes into the record.  Chairman Brown then made a motion
to approve the May 23, 2013 Board of Commissioners Special Called Meeting Minutes and the June 13,
2013 Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes as amended.  Multiple seconds, including Commissioners
Oddo and Ognio, were received.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.  







Minutes
June 27, 2013
Page Number 11


OLD BUSINESS:


NEW BUSINESS:


8. Consideration of staff’s recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2013-14 amending the Code of
Ordinances for Fayette County, Georgia by establishing provisions pertaining to enforcement of
County Ordinances, providing an effective date, repealing conflicting ordinances, providing for
severability, and by promoting the public health, safety and welfare.


Interim County Attorney Dennis Davenport pointed out that the Ordinance Number should read 2013-04
instead of 2013-14 as indicated on the Agenda.  


Mr. Davenport explained that an oath had been written that was not in the draft ordinance presented to the
Board, and he asked the Board’s permission to amend the draft ordinance in order to include the oath.  Mr.
Davenport said the oath would be placed in the ordinance after Section 2-23; meaning there will be a
Section 2-24 on the ordinance that contains the oath.  Mr. Davenport then read the oath into the record.


Chairman Brown moved to approve staff’s recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2013-04 and to include
Section 2-24 as read by the Interim County Attorney.  Commissioner McCarty seconded the motion.  No
discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously. A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 11",
follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


9. Consideration of Commissioner David Barlow’s recommendation of Ms. Cathy Berggren to fill an
unexpired term on the Fayette County Board of Family and Children Services, with said term
beginning June 27, 2013 and ending January 23, 2017.


Commissioner Barlow thanked Ms. Berggren for sitting through such a long meeting.  He then introduced
Ms. Berggren to the Board saying she is the Executive Director of Real Life Center, an organization that
has been serving the community for many years.  He said the Real Life Center takes care of people that are
often not heard of who struggle with physical or mental health, and who struggle with financial well-being. 
She recalled that Real Life Center serves about 420 families a month, and that the service was done out of
charitable kindness and out of the good hearts of the citizens of Fayette County.  He concluded by thanking
God for people like Captain Pete Nelms and Ms. Berggren, and he invited Captain Nelms to say a few
words about Ms. Berggren.  


Captain Pete Nelms, who serves as Chairman of the Family and Children Service’s (DFACS) Board, spoke
how Ms. Berggren was a natural fit for the Board and how she brought a wealth of community resources
with her that could be utilized by DFACS.


Ms. Berggren said it was her pleasure to serve on the Department of Family and Children Services Board. 
She told the Board that she has been a resident of Fayette County for many years, and it was an honor to
help families.  She informed the Board that she has an undergraduate degree in social work and a Masters
in Public Administration.  She stated, however, that what qualified her was growing up on a dairy farm,
being the youngest of five girls, and learning to help each other.  She said that is what the Real Life Center
is all about; neighbor helping neighbor.  She said she has had the privilege to help families who are going
through hard times by offering a hand up, not a hand out.  She concluded that she looked forward to
working with DFACS Director Susan Boggs and the team at DFACS.







Minutes
June 27, 2013
Page Number 12


Commissioner Barlow moved to accept his recommendation to have Cathy Berggren fill an unexpired term
on the Fayette County Board of Family and Children Services with said term beginning June 27, 2013 and
ending January 23, 2017.  Commissioner Ognio seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion
passed unanimously. A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 12", follows these minutes and is
made an official part hereof.


10. Consideration of Commissioner Allen McCarty’s recommendation to reinstate County Employee
Appreciation Picnics, on a bi-annual basis, beginning in 2013.


Commissioner McCarty said one of the first things that he remembered well when he became a
Commissioner was going to a picnic that was held for the County employees, and getting to talk with them,
meeting with them, and getting their reactions.  He said that he also remembered how down through the
years in places where he has worked, that those employers would do things for their employees; and that
everybody appreciated it.  Commissioner McCarty said Fayette County has a fantastic staff, and the fact
that the County discontinued showing appreciation to them is unacceptable to him.  He proposed that the
County reinstate this process, and to do it on a bi-annual basis. 


Chairman Brown asked County Administrator Rapson how did the County stand on this issue from a
budgetary perspective.  Mr. Rapson replied that the proposal would be funded from the money set aside for
this type of project in the budget. He added that a sub-committee would be formed in regards to how to go
about doing the Employee Appreciation days.  He concluded that he had already received some input from
staff on the issue, and that the events were recommended to take place during cooler days rather than
hotter days.


Commissioner McCarty moved to approve his recommendation to reinstate County Employee Appreciation
Picnics, on a bi-annual basis, beginning in 2013.  Commissioner Barlow seconded the motion.  No
discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment
13", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


11. Consideration of a request from the Fayette County Republican Party to authorize the County Clerk
to recognize and certify the removal of Ms. Marilyn Watts as the Republican Representative on the
Fayette County Board of Elections, and to recognize and certify the appointment of Ms. Claudia
Eisenburg as the Republican Party’s replacement on the Fayette County Board of Elections.


This item was removed from the Agenda during the acceptance of the Agenda.  A copy of the request,
identified as “Attachment 14", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


12. Approval of the June 19, 2013 Board of Commissioners Special Called Meeting Minutes.  Chairman
Brown was not present for this meeting.


Commissioner Oddo moved to approve the June 19, 2013 Board of Commissioners Special Called Meeting
Minutes.  Commissioner Ognio seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed 4-0-1
with Chairman Brown abstaining from the vote.







Minutes
June 27, 2013
Page Number 13


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORTS:


Grand Opening of Lake McIntosh:  County Administrator Steve Rapson reminded the Board that June 28, 2013
was the grand opening for Lake McIntosh at 10:00 a.m.  He invited those who could make it to go to the opening.


Rescheduling of the July 11, 2013 Board of Commissioners Meeting: County Administrator Steve Rapson
reported that the July 11, 2013 Board of Commissioners Meeting had to be cancelled, and has instead been
rescheduled to July 9, 2013.  He explained that on July 9, 2013 there would be a meeting held at 5:30 p.m., which is
a Joint Meeting between the City of Fayetteville and Fayette County, to discuss the Pinewood Annexation.  He said
following the 5:30 p.m. meeting, the Board of Commissioners would hold a second Official Meeting at 7:30 p.m.


ATTORNEY’S REPORTS:


Three Items for Executive Session: Interim County Attorney Dennis Davenport reported that he had three items for
Executive Session: two items involving Pending Litigation and two items to approve Executive Session Minutes from
June 13 and June 19, 2013.


COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS:


Commissioner Barlow: Commissioner Barlow apologized to Mrs. Mary Parrott for referring to her as Mary Holland
during his previous comments.  He said when he was videotaping those budget meetings, she was Mary Holland. 
He said it was an innocent error because he does know who Mrs. Parrott is.  He said the Board was tickled pink to
have her with the County.


Commissioner McCarty: Commissioner McCarty introduced his granddaughter who, despite her grandfather and
mother and father being involved in television, was not encouraged to be in television--even though she was born in
front of a television camera.  He said she chose on her own to go to the Atlanta Art Institute where she is taking film
production, editing and related courses.  He pointed out that she brought her video camera and filmed tonight’s
meeting, and that her name is Jennifer.


Commissioner Ognio: Commissioner Ognio wished everyone a safe and happy 4th of July.  He asked everyone to
be careful since there may be drinking going on, and asked for everyone to be aware of what was around them.


Commissioner Oddo: Commissioner Oddo pointed out that he was married on July 4, 2013, and he wished his
wife, Pily, a happy anniversary.


EXECUTIVE SESSION:


Three Items for Executive Session: Chairman Brown moved to leave the regularly scheduled meeting and go into
Executive Session.  Commissioner McCarty seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed
unanimously.


The Board of Commissioners recessed into Executive Session at 9:36 p.m. and returned to Official Session at 9:57
p.m.







Minutes
June 27, 2013
Page Number 14


Return to Official Session and Approval of the Executive Session Affidavit: Commissioner Ognio moved to exit
Executive Session and for the Chairman to sign the Affidavit.  Commissioners McCarty and Barlow seconded the
motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.  A copy of the Executive Session Affidavit,
identified as “Attachment 15", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


Approval of the June 13, 2013 Executive Session Minutes: Chairman Brown moved to approve the June 13,
2013 Executive Session Minutes.  Commissioners Oddo and Ognio seconded the motion.  No discussion followed. 
The motion passed unanimously.


Approval of the June 19, 2013 Executive Session Minutes: Chairman Brown moved to approve the Executive
Session Minutes from June 19, 2013.  Commissioner Ognio seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The
motion passed 4-0-1 with Chairman Brown abstaining from the vote since he was absent from the June 19, 2013
Executive Session meeting.


ADJOURNMENT:


Commissioner Oddo moved to adjourn the June 27, 2013 Board of Commissioners meeting.  Commissioner Barlow
seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


The Board of Commissioners adjourned the June 27, 2013 Meeting at 9:58 p.m.


___________________________________                               __________________________________________
      Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk                                                     Steve Brown, Chairman


The foregoing minutes were duly approved at an official meeting of the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County,
Georgia, held on the 9th day of July 2013.


___________________________________
        Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk








AgendaAgendaAgendaAgenda
Board of Commissioners


July 9, 2013
 7:30 P.M.


Call to Order, Invocation, Pledge of Allegiance


Acceptance of Agenda


PRESENTATION / RECOGNITION:


1. Recognition of Grandparents and Kin Raising Children, Incorporated.


PUBLIC HEARING:


PUBLIC COMMENT:


CONSENT AGENDA:


2. Approval of staff’s recommendation to adopt the Georgia Department of
Transportation’s Contract for Acquisition of Right-of-Way for the McIntosh
Road Bridge Replacement Project (SPLOST No. B-6), and authorization
for the Chairman to sign said contract and related documents.


3. Approval of staff’s recommendation to approve Ordinance 2013-09
amending the Code of Ordinances for Fayette County, Georgia by
establishing operating regulations for Lake McIntosh, repealing conflicting
ordinances, providing severability, and promoting the public health, safety
and welfare, and other purposes.


4. Approval of staff’s recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2013-10 amending
the Code of Ordinances for Fayette County by revising provisions
pertaining to authority to waive procedures and fee structures in
emergencies, providing an effective date, repealing conflicting ordinances,
providing severability, promoting public health, safety and welfare, and for
other purposes.


5. Approval of the June 27, 2013 Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes.


OLD BUSINESS:


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS


Steve Brown, Chairman
Charles Oddo, Vice Chairman


David Barlow
Allen McCarty
Randy Ognio


i


STAFF


Steve Rapson, County Administrator
Dennis Davenport, Interim County


Attorney
Floyd Jones, County Clerk


i


MEETING LOCATION
Public Meeting Room
Administrative Complex
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214


i


MEETING TIMES
2nd and 4th Thursday each month 7:00 pm


i


COMMISSION OFFICE
Administrative Complex


Suite 100
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214
Phone: 770.305.5200
Fax: 770.305.5210


i


WEB SITE


www.fayettecountyga.gov


i


E-MAIL


administration@fayettecountyga.gov







Agenda
July 9, 2013
Page Number 2


NEW BUSINESS:


6. Consideration of staff’s request for proposed intersection improvements at State Route 85 and Harp Road,
including authorization to resume work on the project, to agree to Fayette County making improvements on
Harp Road in exchange for GDOT to install the traffic signal, to authorize Mallett Consulting to complete the
design, and to authorize the County to acquire right-of-ways and easements.


7. Consideration of the Water Committee’s recommendation to award a bid for Supervisory Control and Data
Collection (SCADA) Upgrades to J.K. Duren Company, Inc., in the amount of $299,500.00, and
authorization for the Chairman to sign the contract and related documents.


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORTS:


ATTORNEY’S REPORTS:


COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS:


ADJOURNMENT:








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Commissioners Commissioner David Barlow


Recognition of Grandparents and Kin Raising Children, Inc.


Please see attached.


Recognize of Grandparents and Kin Raising Children, Inc.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Presentation/RecognitionTuesday, July 9, 2013







RecognitionRecognitionRecognitionRecognition    
Grandparents and Kin Raising Children, Inc. 


 


WHEREAS, There are 4.9 million children across the United States who live with their grandparents and other 
relatives; and 


 


WHEREAS, In Georgia, 13,000 grandparents assume the sole responsibility for raising their grandchildren, and 
in Fayette County over 1,000 grandparents have made the life-changing decision to raise a child;  


 


WHEREAS, Increasingly, grandparents and relatives are providing stable and secure homes due to the 
challenges over the past years attributed to the housing and foreclosure crisis, the loss of jobs, and 
the economic recession; and  


 


WHEREAS, The grandchildren often face physical and mental problems as a result of parental drug and alcohol 
abuse, emotional problems resulting from the separation from parents, confusion when parents 
come in and out of their lives, embarrassment and teasing from other children, and academic 
hardships as they worry about their parents and possible abandonment; and 


 


WHEREAS, Grandparents and other relatives also bear burdens such as the inability not to retire, isolation from 
their friends who no longer have children at home, guilt or resentment toward their own children, 
and significant burdens as approximately 20% of these families are in poverty; and 


 


WHEREAS, In 2006, Fayette FACTOR partners, recognizing the special needs of caregivers who have chosen 
to parent again, established the Grandparents Raising Grandchildren initiative by offering support 
groups, newsletters, training seminars, and assistance in navigating the local and state agencies; 
and 


 


WHEREAS In 2011, Grandparents Raising Grandchildren became their own 501(c)3, a non-profit organization 
with a new name:  Grandparents and Kin Raising Grandchildren;  


 


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that we, the Fayette County Board of Commissioners, recognize  


 


GRANDPARENTS AND KIN RAISING CHILDREN, INC. 
 


and in so doing we thank Fayette FACTOR,  the volunteers and staff, including Coordinator Queen Gordy, and the 
families throughout Fayette County and Georgia who provide loving homes to their children and relatives in difficult 
circumstances.  We further call upon the Fayette community to support Grandparents and Kin Raising Children, Inc. 
monetarily and through volunteer efforts. 


 


 So Recognized this 9th Day of July 2013 


 


        BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 


        FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA 


 


       _______________________________________ 


           Steve Brown, Chairman 





		Commissioners- Grandparents Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- Grandparents Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Legal Interim Attorney Dennis Davenport


Approval of staff's recommendation to approve Ordinance 2013-09 amending the Code of Ordinances for Fayette County, Georgia by 


establishing operating regulations for Lake McIntosh, repealing conflicting ordinances, providing severability, and promoting the public 


health, safety and welfare, and for other purposes.


Lake McIntosh is the county reservoir designated as Lake McIntosh and established and owned by Fayette County.   


 


Ordinance 2013-09 establishes the Hours of Operation, Prohibited Activities, Miscellaneous regulations, and Penalties for violations . 


 


Lake McIntosh will be open to the public from 6:30 am until 6:00 p.m. eastern standard time or 6:30 a.m. until 8:30 p.m. daylight savings 


time.   


 


Prohibited activities include swimming, wade, bodily contact with the water, operation of hydrocarbon or alcohol-fueled boats or other 


water craft, water skiing, scuba diving, alcoholic beverages, and fishing from the shore except for within the recreation area.   


 


The general public shall have access to Lake McIntosh only at areas designated as public access and facilities by the owner, that it is 


unlawful for anyone under the age of 14 to operate any watercraft on Lake McIntosh, entry of all vehicles registered in any county, aside 


from Fayette County, shall cause the accrual of a daily parking fee set forth by the Board of Commissioners.  Violators may be subject to 


fine and / or imprisonment not to exceed $1,000 or thirty (30) days imprisonment.


Approval of staff's recommendation to approve Ordinance 2013-09 amending the Code of Ordinances for Fayette County, Georgia by 


establishing operating regulations for Lake McIntosh, repealing conflicting ordinances, providing severability, and promoting the public 


health, safety and welfare, and for other purposes.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


ConsentTuesday, July 9, 2013







 


 
 1 


STATE OF GEORGIA 


FAYETTE COUNTY 


ORDINANCE 


NO. 2013-09 


AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CODE OF ORDINANCES FOR FAYETTE 


COUNTY, GEORGIA; TO ESTABLISH  OPERATING REGULATIONS FOR LAKE 


MCINTOSH; TO REPEAL CONFLICTING ORDINANCES; TO PROVIDE FOR 


SEVERABILITY; TO PROMOTE THE PUBLIC HEALTH, SAFETY AND WELFARE, 


AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF 


COMMISSIONERS FOR FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA AND IT IS HEREBY 


ENACTED PURSUANT TO THE AUTHORITY OF THE SAME THAT THE CODE OF 


ORDINANCES OF FAYETTE COUNTY AS IT PERTAINS TO RECREATION AND 


PARKS (CHAPTER 14), BE AMENDED AS FOLLOWS: 


 


Section 1. By designating Sections 14-65 through 14-79 of Article IV of Chapter 14 as 


“Reserved”, and by adding a new Article V, pertaining to “Lake McIntosh”, to 


Chapter 14, to be numbered and read as follows: 


ARTICLE V.  LAKE McINTOSH 


Sec. 14-80. Definitions. 


 The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this article shall have the 


meaning ascribed to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a 







 


 
 2 


different meaning: 


 Lake McIntosh means the county reservoir designated as Lake McIntosh and 


established in the county and owned and operated by this county.  This definition 


includes the lake at its normal pool elevation, a certain flood easement as shown on the 


records as kept in the clerk's office of the county superior court, dam site and public 


access and facilities. 


 Owner means the county and/or the board of commissioners. 


 Public assess and facilities means any area open to the public in or about Lake 


McIntosh as designated by the county. 


 


Sec. 14-81. Hours of operation. 


 Lake McIntosh shall be open to the general public from and to those public access 


and facility areas as designated by the county between the hours of 6:30 a.m. and 6:00 


p.m. eastern standard time or 6:30 a.m. and 8:30 p.m. daylight saving time, whichever is 


applicable. 


 


Sec. 14-82. Prohibited activities. 


 The following activities shall be prohibited on or about Lake McIntosh and any 


other property surrounding such area as being property of the owner: 


(1) Swimming, wading; 


(2) Any activity allowing bodily contact with the water; 


(3) The operation of any hydrocarbon or alcohol-fueled power boats or other water 







 


 
 3 


craft so powered; 


(4) Water skiing; 


(5) Scuba diving; 


(6) Alcoholic beverages; and 


(7) Fishing from shore except for the shore within the recreation area. 


 


Sec. 14-83. Miscellaneous. 


(a) The general public shall have access to Lake McIntosh only at those areas 


designated as public access and facilities by the owner. 


(b) It shall be unlawful for any person under the age of fourteen (14) to operate any 


and all water craft which are either electrically, wind or manually powered upon Lake 


McIntosh.  No person under the age of fourteen (14) years old shall be allowed in or upon 


Lake McIntosh unless accompanied by a parent or legal guardian or other adult over the 


age of twenty-one (21) years old. 


(c) Entry of any and all vehicles registered in any county, aside from Fayette County, 


Georgia, upon the grounds of Lake McIntosh, shall cause the accrual of a daily parking 


fee in an amount set forth by the Fayette County Board of Commissioners from time to 


time.  Said fee shall be paid by the occupant(s) of said vehicle immediately subsequent to 


entering upon the Lake McIntosh grounds, in accordance with the procedures and rules 


posted for said payment. 


 


Sec. 14-84. Penalty for violations. 







 


 
 4 


 Any and all violations of this article shall be tried in the state court of Fayette 


County.  Upon conviction, such violator shall be subject to fine and/or imprisonment not 


to exceed one thousand dollars ($1,000.00) or thirty (30) days imprisonment. 


 


Section 2. This ordinance shall become effective immediately upon its adoption by the 


Board of Commissioners for Fayette County, Georgia. 


 


Section 3. All other ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are 


hereby repealed. 


 


Section 4. In any event any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance 


shall be declared or adjudged invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall 


in no manner affect other sections, subsections, sentences, clauses or phrases of 


this Ordinance, which shall remain in full force and effect as if the section, 


subsection, sentence, clause or phrase so declared or adjudged invalid or 


unconstitutional were not a part thereof.  The Board of Commissioners hereby 


declares that it would have passed the remaining parts of this Ordinance if it had 


known that such part or parts hereof would be declared or adjudged invalid or 


unconstitutional.


 


 


SO ENACTED this ____ day of _________________, 2013. 







 


 
 5 


 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF 
FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA 


 
 


By:_______________________ 
     Steve Brown, Chairman 


(SEAL)  
 


 
ATTEST:      
 
 
___________________________ 
Floyd Jones, County Clerk 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
___________________________ 
Interim County Attorney 





		Legal- Ordinance 2013-09 Agenda Request File

		Legal- Ordinance 2013-09 Backup



